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POST OFFICE Box 32000 •1961 MIDWAY STREET • SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 71130-2000 
AREA CODE 318 • TELEPHONE 603-6300 • FAX 631-5241 

Transmittal Letter 

December 19,2013 

Ml-. Lany Ramsey, President 
Caddo Parish School Board Members 

and Citizens of Caddo Parish 

Louisiana law requires that an annual sworn fmancial statement be furnished to the Legislative Auditor within six 
months ofthe close of each fiscal year ui accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and 
audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) by a certified public accountant. 
Pursuant to that requkement, we hereby issue the Comprehensive Atmual Financial Report ofthe Caddo Parish 
School Board for the year ended June 30,2013. 

This report consists of management's representations concerning the fmanees ofthe Caddo Parish School Board. 
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the 
mformation presented in this report. To provide a reasonable baste for making these representations, management 
ofthe Caddo Paiish School Board (School Board) has established a comprehensive internal control framework 
that is designed both to protect the School Board's assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient 
reliable information for the preparation ofthe Caddo Parish School Board's fmancial statements in conformity 
with GAAP. Because the cost of mtemal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Caddo Parish School 
Board's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than 
absolute assurance that the fmancial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we 
assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material 
respects. 

Allen, Green, & Williamson, LLP, a fmn of licensed certified public accountants, has audited the Caddo Paiish 
School Board's financial statements. The goal ofthe independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that 
the financial statements ofthe Caddo Parish School Board for the fiscal yeai- ended June 30, 2013 are free of 
material misstatement. The uidependent audit mvolved exammmg, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures m the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management; and evaluatmg the overall financial statement presentation. The mdependent 
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendermg an unmodified opinion 
that the Caddo Parish School Board's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 are fairly 
presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). 
The independent auditors' report is presented as the first component ofthe financial section of this report. 
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The independent audit ofthe financial statements ofthe Caddo Parish School Board was part of a broader, federally 
mandated Single Audit designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards goveming 
Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation ofthe financial 
statements, but also on the audited government's intemal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with 
special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These 
reports are available in the Caddo Parish School Board's separately issued Single Audit Report. 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic 
financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is 
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The Caddo Parish School Board's 
MD&A can be found immediately after the report of the independent auditors. 

PROFILE OF THE CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Purpose and operations. The Caddo Parish School Board was created by Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-R.S.) 
17:51 to provide public education for the children within Caddo Parish. The School Board is authorized by LSA-
R.S. 17:81 to establish policies and regulations for its own government consistent with the laws ofthe state of 
Louisiana and the regulations ofthe Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. The School Board is 
comprised of 12 members who are elected from 12 districts for concurrent terms of 4 years. 

The School Board operates 64 schools within the parish with a total enrollment of approximately 41,000 pupils. The 
School Board provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K through 12. These 
include regular and enriched academic education, special education, occupational education, and many 
individualized programs such as specialized instruction for disadvantaged students and those with limited English 
proficiency. These basic programs are supplemented by a wide variety of offerings in the fine arts and athletics. In 
conjunction with the regular educational programs, some of these schools offer pre-kindergarten, special education 
and/or adult education programs. In addition, the School Board provides transportation and school food services for 
the students. 

Reporting entity. The report includes all entities or organizations that are required to be included in the School 
Board's reporting entity. The basic criteria for determining whether a govermiiental department, agency, institution, 
commission, public authority, or other governmental organization should be included in a govemmental unit's 
reporting entity is financial accountability. Financial accountability includes the appointment of a voting majority of 
the organization's governing body and either the ability ofthe primary government to impose it's will on the 
organization or if there is a financial benefit/burden relationship. In addition, an organization which is fiscally 
dependent on the primary govermiient should be included in its reporting entity. 

The financial statements present the Caddo Parish School Board (the primary government). Based on the above 
criteria there are no component units to be included in the School Board's reporting entity. 

The Superintendent submits an annual operating budget to the School Board at its regular meeting in May or June of 
each year. The operating budget serves as the foundation for the School Board's financial planning and control. The 
proposed budget is made available for public inspection at least 15 days prior to the date of a public hearing and at 
least one public hearing is held, as required by Louisiana law, prior to its adoption by the School Board. Budget-to-
actual comparisons are provided in this report. 

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the 
broader perspective ofthe specific environment within which the School Board operates. 

10 



Economic Outlook Northwest Louisiana is a region of nearly 800,000 residents and is the hub of a tri-state region 
known as the Ark-La-Tex. While the auto industry, real estate and other factors have hurt the national economy, our 
area is still doing well. Local residential and commercial real estate values continue to be stable, in sharp contrast to 
the rest ofthe country over the last few years. 

Financial stresses at the state level continue to put more of a burden on all of the local school districts. Through 
sound fiscal practices over the years, our school district has been able to weather this storm. While we reduced 
staffing again this year, we were able to do so entirely through attrition. We did not have to enact our reduction in 
force policy. State educational funding remained flat this year. We again had to finance increased state mandated 
programs with no additional funding. However, even with these issues, we were able to adopt a balanced budget for 
2013-14 and financial results for 2012-13 were approximately $10 million better than originally budgeted. 

Benteler International began construction on the first phase of a $975 million steel manufacturing project under 
constmction at The Port of Caddo-Bossier in Shreveport, Louisiana, which is estimated to create 675 jobs in the 
region. 

Finally, Elio Motors acquired the former GM plant from the RACER Trust, an independent trust created by a 
bankmptcy settlement agreement to redevelop closed GM locations. This move is expected to bring 1,500 jobs to 
the area over the next two years, each with an average salary of $47,000. The company also pledged to make a 
capital investment in excess of $100 million. 

Financial Policies. Financial stresses at the state level continue to put more of a burden on all ofthe local school 
districts. Through sound fiscal practices over the years, our school district had been able to weather this storm. 
State educational funding remained flat again this year. We again had to finance state mandated programs with no 
additional funding. This continues to put a drain on our fund balance. However, even with these issues, we were 
able to adopt a balanced budget. 

Long-term financial planning. The mission of the School Board is to improve the academic achievement of 
students and overall district effectiveness. We have high expectations for everyone - students, teachers, 
administrators, parents, community volunteers, and support groups. While acknowledging that Caddo has many 
successful schools, the state's accountability plan is driving fundamental changes in instruction by demanding that 
schools show annual academic growth. These measures will require that elected officials and administrators provide 
effective leadership for the wisest use of all available resources. The School Board has adopted goals and objectives 
to improve its fund balance, increase grant revenues, and reduce costs of support functions while addressing critical 
instructional needs. 

Facilities. The school system operates buildings at 65 school and auxiliary sites. Buildings on these sites range in 
age from 23 years to 101 years old. 

Pension and other post employment benefits. The School Board provides a defined benefit pension plan for its 
employees through two cost-sharing multiple-employer statewide plans. The School Board has no obligations in 
connection with employee benefits offered through these plans beyond its annual required payments to the plan. 

The School Board also provides post-retirement healthcare and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. As 
of the end of the current fiscal year, there were approximately 4,500 retired employees receiving these benefits, 
which are financed on a fully insured basis. 

Additional information on the School Board's pension arrangements and post-employment benefits can be found in 
notes 6 and 17 in the notes to the basic financial statements. 
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AWARDS 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting to the School Board for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year 
ended June 30,2012, This was the 25"'consecutive year that the School Board has received this prestigious award. 
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the School Board published an easily readable and efficiently 
organized CAFR. This report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal requirements. 

The Association of School Board Officials (ASBO) International awarded a Certificate of Excellence in Financial 
Reporting Award for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30,2012. Tliis 
was the 25"' consecutive year that tlie School Board has received tliis prestigious award. The award represents a 
significant achievement by tlie School Board and reflects our commitment to the highest standards of school system 
financial reporting. 

The Certificate of Achievement and Certificate of Excellence are valid for a period of one year only. We believe that 
our current CAFR continues to meet the certificate requirements and we are submittmg it to botli GFOA and ASBO 
to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services ofthe 
entire staff of tlie Finance Department. We want to express our appreciation to all members ofthe department who 
assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. We also thank the members ofthe School Board for their 
interest and support in planning and conducting tlie financial operations ofthe school system in a responsible and 
progressive manner. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

Board Members 
Caddo Parish School Board 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofthe govemmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information ofthe Caddo Parish School Board, as of and for the year ended June 30,2013, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School Board's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment ofthe risks of 
material misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the School Board's preparation and fair presentation ofthe financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe School Board's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position ofthe govemmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the Caddo Parish School Board, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion 
and Analysis, Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Post Employment Benefits Plan, Schedule of Employer 
Contributions for Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan, and the Budgetary Comparison Schedules, as listed in the 
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of 
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Caddo Parish School Board's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information, as listed 
in the table of contents and the other information, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part ofthe basic financial statements. 

The accompanying supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information, as listed in 
the table of contents, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The accompanying other information, as listed in the table of contents including the introductory and statistical 
sections, has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe basic financial statements, and 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report, under separate cover, dated 
December 19,2013 on our consideration ofthe Caddo Parish School Board's intemal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, connacts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report Is an integral pait of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the School Board's intemal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

P 
7 

ALLEN, GREEN & WILLIAMSON, LLP 

Monroe, Louisiana 
December 19, 2013 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

June 30, 2013 

The discussion and analysis of Caddo Parish School Board's (School Board) financial performance provides an 
overall review ofthe School Board's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The intent of this 
discussion and analysis is to look at the School Board's financial performance as a whole. Readers should also 
review the transmittal letter, financial statements, and notes to the basic financial statements to enhance their 
understanding ofthe School Board's financial performance. 

Financial Highlights In fiscal year 2013, the School Board implemented the following GASB Statements: 

Statement No. 63, "Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net 
Position." This Statement establishes standards for reporting of deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources, and net position. 

Statement No. 65, "Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities." This Statement amends or supersedes the 
accounting and financial guidance for certain items previously reported as assets or liabilities as well as establishes 
accounting and financial reporting standards for the financial statements of state and local governments. 

As a result ofthe implementation of these Statements, $174,005 of bond issuance costs was written off and the 
Statements did change the presentation ofthe School Board's financials, which consisted ofthe net assets being 
classified as net position. 

Key financial highlights for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are as follows: 

• Statement of Net Position: 
The liabilities ofthe Caddo Parish School Board exceeded its assets at the close ofthe most recent fiscal 
year by $347.9 million (net position). Of this amount, approximately $493.3 million is the deficit in 
unrestricted net position. 

• Statement of Activities: 
The School Board's total net position decreased by $108.1 million for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

• Governmental Funds Balance Sheet: 
As ofthe close ofthe fiscal year 2012-13, the Caddo Parish School Board's govemmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balance of $ 103.8 million, a decrease of $ 16 million in comparison with the prior 
fiscal year. The majority of this fund balance is comprised of approximately (1) $29.7 million which is 
unassigned and available for spending within the General Fund, (2) $22.9 million which is nonspendable 
or cormnitted in the general fund, (3) $12.2 million which is restricted within the Capital Projects Fund, 
(4) $18.9 million nonspendable for purposes of instructional enhancement within the Caddo Educational 
Excellence (CEEF) Permanent Fund, (5) $12 million which is restricted for debt service, and (6) $7.6 
million restricted for the Child Nutrition Program. 

• Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances: 
Total revenues for the year ended June 30,2013 for the govemmental funds ofthe Caddo Parish School 
Board amounted to $470.0 million. Approximately 84.4% of this amount was received from three major 
revenue sources: (1) $201.9 million fromLouisiana's Minimum Foundation Program, (2) $123.7 million 
from local ad valorem taxes, and (3) $71.3 million from local sales and use taxes. 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

June 30, 2013 

• General Fundus Endins Fund Balance: 
At the end ofthe current fiscal year, fund balance for the General Fund, a major fund, was $52.6 million 
or 13.9% of total General Fund expenditures. $1.5 million was non-spendable, $21.4 million 
(committed) is set aside for future claims and contingencies and equipment replacement, while $29.7 
million (unassigned) is available for spending at the School Board's discretion. This unassigned balance 
represents 7.8% of General Fund expenditures. 

• Capital Assets: 
Total capital assets (net of depreciation) were $223.5 million or 55.4% ofthe total assets. The School 
Board uses these assets to provide educational services to children and adults; consequently, these assets 
are not available for future spending. 

• Lons-Term Liabilities: 
The Caddo Parish School Board's total long-term debt decreased $9 million during the current fiscal 
year. Debt on general obligation bonds decreased by $5.3 million. Debt on outstanding Qualified Zone 
Academy Bond Program decreased by $.4 million. Debt on outstanding certificates of indebtedness 
decreased by $.7 million. Debt on Qualified School Construction Bonds decreased $2.6 million. 

Other long-term liabilities increased $103.3 million during the current fiscal year. This increase is due 
almost entirely to the increase in OPEB liability. 

This year, primary resources available to the school system are local revenues, primarily tax receipts, which total 
$206.0 million or 43.8% ofthe total; state revenues, primarily Minimum Foundation Program funding (equalization) 
and special grants, totaling $206.0million or 43.9% ofthe total; and federal funds, totaling $58.0 million or 12.3% of 
the total. Last year, local revenues were $205.5 million or 42.9%, while state revenues were $208.9 million or 
43.6%, and federal revenues were $64.3 million or 13.4%. 

Total Revenues By Source 

2011-2012 
2012-2013 

State 
43.6% 

Federal 
13.4% 

State 
43.9% 

Federal 
12.3% 

Local 
42.9% 

Local 
43.8% 

Overview ofthe Financial Statements 

This MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the Caddo Parish School Board's basic financial statements. 
The Caddo Parish School Board's basic financial statements comprise three components; (1) govemment-wide 
financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains 
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

28 



Caddo Parish School Board 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

June 30, 2013 

Government-wide Financial Statements. The govemment-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview ofthe Caddo Parish School Board's finances, in a manner similar to a private 
sector business. 

• The Statement of Net Position presents information on all ofthe Caddo Parish School Board's assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in 
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position ofthe Caddo Parish School 
Board is improving or deteriorating. 

• The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Caddo Parish School Board's net 
position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, 
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

• The governmental-wide financial statements can be found following the MD&A. 

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Caddo Parish School Board, like 
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance 
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Caddo Parish School Board can be divided into three 
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 

• Governmental funds. Govermnental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported 
as governmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, govemmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows 
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources at the end ofthe fiscal year. Such 
information may be useful in evaluating the Caddo Parish School Board's near-term financing requirements. 

• Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that ofthe govermnent-wide financial statements, 
it is useful to compare the information presented for govermnental funds with similar infonnation presented 
for govermnental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact ofthe Caddo Parish School Board's near-term financing decisions. Both 
the govermnental funds balance sheet and the govemmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between govemmental funds 
and governmental activities. 

• The Caddo Parish School Board maintains twenty-two individual govemmental funds. Information is 
presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and Permanent Fund - CEEF 
which are considered to be major funds. The permanent fund, CEEF, is used to account for the Caddo 
Educational Excellence Fund. These monies are held by the School Board in trust and the principal cannot be 
expended. Data for the other twenty govemmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements in this report. The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for, and the payment of, long term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 
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• The Caddo Parish School Board adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and Special 
Revenue Funds. Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided to demonstrate compliance with these 
budgets. 

• The govemmental fund financial statements can be found following the govermnent wide financial 
statements. 

• Proprietary fund. Intemal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs 
internally among the School Boards various functions. The School Board uses an intemal service fund to 
account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of employee health insurance. Because this 
service predominantly benefits governmental functions, it has been included with governmental activities in 
the govemment-wide financial statements. 

• Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
Caddo Parish School Board. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements 
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Caddo Parish School Board's own 
programs. The Caddo Parish School Board maintains two agency funds named the School Activity Funds 
and the Central Office Concession, and one Other Employee Benefits Tmst Fund. 

• Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding ofthe data provided in the govemment-wide and fund financial statements. 

• Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain required supplemental infonnation conceming the Caddo Parish School Board's compHance with 
budgets for its major funds. The combining statements for nomnajor govermnental funds are presented 
irmnediately following the required supplemental infonnation. 

Financial Analysis of Government-wide Activities 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govermnent's financial position. In the 
case of the Caddo Parish School Board, liabilities exceed assets by $347.9 million at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year (FY). 

The largest portion ofthe Caddo Parish School Board's net position totaling more than $94.3 million reflects its 
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire 
those assets that are still outstanding. The Caddo Parish School Board uses these capital assets to provide educational 
services to children and adults; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Caddo 
Parish School Board's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be 
used to liquidate these liabilities. 

The School Board as a Whole. The School Board's net position was $(347.9) million at June 30, 2013. Of this 
amount; $(493.3) million was unrestricted, $51.1 million was restricted, and $94.3 million was invested in capital 
assets. 
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The following analysis focuses on the net position (Table 1) and change in net position (Table 2) of the School 
Board's govemmental activities: 

TABLE 1 
Net Position (in millions) 

For Fiscal Years Ended June 30 

Govemmental Activities Percentage 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation 

Total assets 

Current and other liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

2013 
$ 179.7 

223.5 
403.2 

74.1 
677.0 
75 LI 

94.3 
51.1 

(493.3) 
$ (347.9) 

2012 
$ 180.5 

224.9 
405.4 

62.5 
582.7 
645.2 

100.9 
49.3 

(390.0) 
$ (239.8) 

Change 
(04) 
(0.6) 
(0.5) 

18.6 
16.2 
164 

(6.5) 
3.7 

(26.5) 
(45.1) 

Restricted net position of $51.1 million is reported separately to show legal constraints for the payment of 
outstanding long-tenn debt obligations and to limit the Caddo Parish School Board from using these funds for day-to­
day operations. The debt service fund accounts for $12 million and capital project funds account for $12 million. 
The remaining balance is restricted for instructional enhancement and is generated from the school board's share of 
gaming receipts that are collected from area riverboat casinos. State law requires the gaming receipts to be held in 
perpetuity; however, the investment eamings may be spent for purposes of instructional enhancement. As of June 30, 
2013, the permanently restricted portion was $18.9 million and investment earnings were $.3 million. The remaining 
balance of $493.3 is a deficit in the unrestricted net position. 

Net position decreased $108.1 million from the prior year mainly due to the increase in our OPEB accrual. Revenue 
decreased approximately $9.5 million in fiscal year 2012-13. This resulted from a reduction in operating grants of 
approximately $6 million and a reduction in MFP revenue of approximately $3 million. The district's expenditures 
decreased $5.0 million in fiscal year 2012-13. The district increased its OPEB liability by $103.6 million. 
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Governmental Activities. Govemmental Activities decreased the School Board's net position by $108.1 
million. Key elements of this decrease are as follows: 

TABLE 2 
Changes in Net Position (in millions) 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 

Revenues: 
Program revenues 

Charges for services 
Operating grants and contributions 

General revenues 
Ad valorem taxes 
Sales taxes 
State Minimum Foundation Program 
Other general revenues 
Total revenues 

Function/program expenses: 
Instmction 

Regular programs 
Special programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services 
Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
School administration 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Central services 

Food services 
Community service programs 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total expenses 
Increase (decrease) in net position 
Net position - beginning 
Net position - ending 

2013 

$ 2.3 
59.9 

123.7 
71.3 

201.9 
10.0 

2012 

$ 2.3 
65.8 

120.9 
74.5 

204.9 
10.2 

Percentage 
Change 

(9.0) 

2.3 
(4.3) 
(1.5) 
(2.0) 

469.1 

577.2 
(108.1) 
(239.8) 

$ (347.9) 

478.6 

582.2 
(103.6) 
(136.2) 

$ (239.8) 

(2.0) 

195.1 
68.0 
54.8 

37.5 
31.0 

7.7 
36.1 

5.6 
76.1 
27.1 

7.6 
25.7 

0.7 
4.2 

191.5 
69.0 
53.9 

34.4 
32.5 

6.3 
34.6 

5.5 
88.0 
27.6 

7.1 
25.4 

0.8 
5.6 

1.9 
(1.4) 
1.7 

9.0 
(4.6) 
22.2 

4.3 
1.8 

(13.5) 
(1.8) 
7.0 
1.2 

(12.5) 
(25.0) 

(0.9) 
(4.3) 
76.1 

(45.1) 
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Governmental Activities Total and Net Costs 

As reported in the Statement of Activities, the total cost of all governmental activities this year was $577.2 million. 

The table below presents the cost of each ofthe School Board's largest functions - regular instmctional programs, 
special instructional programs, other instructional programs, plant services, instructional staff support, student 
services, and school administration, as well as each program's net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the 
activities). As discussed above, net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the School Board's taxpayers 
by each of these functions. Providing this information allows the analysis ofthe cost of each function in comparison 
to the benefits provided by that function. 

Total Costs of Service Percent Net Costs of Service Percent 

Regular programs 
Special programs 
Other instructional programs 
Plant services 
Instructional staff support 
Student services 
School administration 
All other 
Totals 

$ 

T 

2013 
195.1 
68.0 
54.8 
76.1 
31.0 
37.5 
36.1 
78.6 

577.2 

$ 

T 

2012 
191.5 
69.0 
53.9 
88.0 
32.5 
34.4 
34.6 
78.3 

582.2 

Change 
1.9 

(1.4) 
1.7 

(13.5) 
(4.6) 
9.0 
4.3 
0.4 

(0.9) 

$ 

$ 

2013 
1924 
66.9 
29.9 
75.5 
23.0 
30.9 
36.0 
60.4 

515.0 

2012 
$ 189.8 

65.8 
30.1 
874 
23.1 
27.5 
34.5 
55.9 

$ 514.1 

Chanae 
14 
1.7 

(0.7) 
(13.6) 
(0.4) 
124 
4.3 
8.1 
0.2 

Program Expenses and Revenues Governmental Activities 

Expenses are classified by functions/programs. The related revenues are comprised of specific charges for the 
services and operating grants and contributions received to offset the expenses for the specific program. 

Instructional services (regular programs, special programs, and other instmctional programs) for fiscal 2013 totaling 
$317.9 million or 55% of total expenses, increased $3.5 million or 1.1% from fiscal year 2012 primarily due to an 
increase in salary & related benefits. 

Services that support the instmctional services including student services, instmctional staff support, general 
administration, school administration, business services, plant services, student transportation services and central 
services are support services. Support services for fiscal 2013 totaling $228.7 million or 39.6% of total expenses, 
decreased $7.3 million or 3.1% from fiscal 2012 primarily due to a reduction in plant services, primarily related to 
closing two schools, and reduced utility expense. 

The remaining expenses (food services, community service programs, and interest on long term debt) of $30.6 
million or 5.3% of total expenses, decreased $1.2 million or 3.1% from fiscal 2012 primarily due to reduced interest 
on long term debt. 

The program revenues for fiscal 2013 directly related to these expenses totaled $59.9 million, which along with $2.3 
million in charges for services, resulted in net program expenses of $515.0 million. These net program expenses are 
funded by general revenues of the Caddo Parish School Board. 
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Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 

Minimum Foundation 
program, 43.0% 

1.1 

Ad valoremtaxes,26.' 

Sa les a use taxes, 15.2% 

Miscellaneous Revenue,^ - ^ ^ ' ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ -——Charges for services. 
0.5% 

operating grants& 
contri butions, 12.8% \ ^ Qra nt S contributions 

not restricted to spedfic 
programs, 0.5% 

Minimum Foundation Program: The single largest source of revenue to the Caddo Parish School Board for 
grants and contributions not restricted to a specific program is the State Equalization or commonly called the 
Minimum Foundation Program (MFP). The MFP distribution is based on a formula adopted by the Louisiana 
Board of Elementary and Secondary Education and approved by the Louisiana Legislature. The chart below 
lists the actual increases or decreases in MFP funds for the past three years. 

Fiscal Year 
2010-2011 
2011-2012 
2012-2013 

General 
192.3 
198.8 
197.7 

Child 
Nutrition 
Program 

6.3 
6.2 
4.2 

Total MFP 
198.6 
205.0 
201.9 

Increase/(Decrease) 
(7.2) (3.5)% 
6.4 3.2% 

(3.1) (1.5)% 

In FY 2012-13 the School Board received $201.9 million or 43.0% of its total revenue from the MFP. These 
revenues are deposited in the General Fund and the Child Nutrition Program Fund only. Most ofthe $3.1 
million decrease is due to a mid-year adjustment of $4.1 million. 

Ad Valorem Tax Revenues: Ad valorem tax revenues, also called property tax revenues, are the second largest 
source of revenue for the School Board. Ad valorem collections are based upon the number of mills (approved 
annually by the School Board) and the taxable assessed value (established by the Caddo Parish Tax Assessor), 
subject to the limitations approved by the voters and the Louisiana Legislature. The chart below lists the ad 
valorem tax deposits for the past three years. 

34 



Caddo Parish School Board 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

June 30, 2013 

Fiscal Year 
2010-2011 
2011-2012 
2012-2013 

General 
87.0 
90.9 
94.7 

Nonmajor 
Parish-Wide 

Capital 
Projects 

17.5 
18.5 
19.3 

Nonmajor 
Debt 

Service 
10.9 
11.5 
9.7 

Total 
Ad Valorem 

Taxes 
115.4 
120.9 
123.7 

Increase/(Decrease) 
7.2 6.7% 
5.5 4.8% 
2.8 2.3% 

In FY 2012-2013, the School Board recognized $ 123.7 million of ad valorem tax revenues for the General Fund, the 
Parish-Wide Capital Projects Fund, and the Debt Service Fund. This represents 26.4% ofthe total revenues received. 
Ad valorem tax revenues in FY 2012-2013 increased by 2.8%) as a result of continued increases in property values. 

Also, 2012 was a re-assessment year. 

• Sales and Use Tax Revenues: Sales and use tax revenues are the third largest source of revenues for the Caddo 
Parish School Board. A 1.5% sales tax rate is levied upon the sale and consumption of goods and services within 
the parish. The chart below lists the sales and use tax revenues for the past three years. 

Fiscal Year 
2010-2011 
2011-2012 
2012-2013 

General Fund 
78.3 
74.5 
71.3 

Increase/(D ecrease) 
3.4 

(3.8) 
(3.2) 

4.5% 
(4.9)% 
(4.3)% 

All sales and use tax revenues are deposited into the General Fund. This represents 15.2 % ofthe total revenues 
received. The decrease in FY 2012-2013 resulted from the continued decline in mineral exploration and production 
in the parish. 

• Operating Grants and Contributions: Operating grants and contributions are the fourth largest source of revenues 
for the School Board. This revenue type is primarily comprised of federal grants with some state grants included. 
These grants and contributions are specifically restricted to certain programs, and therefore, are netted against the 
costs of these programs to show a true net cost. The chart below, stated in millions of dollars, shows the 
operating grants, and contributions by fund source. 

Fiscal Year 
2010-2011 
2011-2012 
2012-2013 

General 
4.0 
2.9 
1.6 

Title I 
26.1 
25.4 
22.3 

Parish wide 
Capital 
Proiects 

.4 
-
-

Nomnajor 
Special 

Revenue 
38.8 
37.5 
36.0 

Total 
69.3 
65.8 
59.9 

Increase/(Decrease) 
(6.7) (8.8)% 
(3.5) (5.1)% 
(5.9) (9.0)% 

In FY 2012-2013, the School Board received $59.9 million in operating grants and contributions. The 9.0% decrease 
in FY 2012-2013 is primarily due to the continued reduction in federal and state grants. 
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

As noted earlier, the Caddo Parish School Board uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

The focus ofthe Caddo Parish School Board's govemmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such infonnation is useful in assessing the Caddo Parish School 
Board's financing requirements. Inparticular, unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a School 
Board's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The General Fund is the main operating fund ofthe Caddo Parish School Board. At the end ofthe cunent fiscal year, 
spendable fund balance of the General Fund was $51.1 million. The Caddo Parish School Board has committed 
$21.4 million ofthe spendable fund balance for future claims and contingencies and for equipment replacement. The 
remaining $29.7 million (unassigned) is available for spending at the Caddo Parish School Board's discretion. The 
fund balance ofthe general fund decreased $3.5 million for the fiscal year. The main reason for this was spending in 
excess of revenue due primarily to the reduction in MFP Funding. 

The CEEF Permanent Fund has a total fundbalance of $18.9 million. A net increase of $.8 million occurred during 
the cunent fiscal year, largely due to continued receipts from the two riverboat casinos located in the parish. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights. The Caddo Parish School Board recognizes the importance of sound fiscal 
planning, as well as the technical relationship ofthe financial structure to the teaching of students. Fonnal budgetary 
integration is employed as a management control device during the fiscal year. The budget policy ofthe Caddo 
Parish School Board complies with state law, as amended, and as set forth in Louisiana Revised Statutes Title 39, 
Chapter 9, Louisiana Local Government Budget Act (LSA-R.S. 39:1301 et seq.). 

Theoriginalbudget for the Caddo Parish School Board was adopted on June 5,2012 and the final budget amendment 
was adopted on April 16,2013. Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget ofthe General 
Fund are as follows: 

Revenues 

Ad valorem taxes were estimated at $90 million when the budget was first adopted by the board in 
June 2012. The original budget was increased by $3.6 million as the result of increased property 
values. 
Sales tax revenue was estimated at $77 million. However, due to the decline in mineral exploration 
and production, it was reduced by $6.9 million in the final budget amendment. 
The original budget projected an ending final balance of $$43.2 million. The revised ending 
budgeted fund balance was $41.7 million. 

Expenditures 

The original budget for instruction was adjusted by an insignificant amount. 
The original budget for all other services increased by $1.5 million as the result of additional 
legal fees and transportation costs. 
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Actual Results 

• Actual revenues were more than the final budget with a variance of $ 10 million. The reason was 
higher local revenue. 

• Total expenditures were less than final budget with a variance of $.8 million, which is attributed to 
normal operating variances. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Asset. For the year ended June 30, 2013, the School Board had $223.5 million (net of accumulated 
depreciation) invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land, constmction in progress, buildings, fumiture 
and equipment, and transportation equipment. This amount represents a net decrease (including additions, 
deductions, and depreciation) of $1.4 million or .6% from last year. 

Capital Assets 
(Net of depreciation) 

Govemmental Activities 

Laid 
Construction in progress - buildings 
Buildings and improvements 
Fumiture and equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Intangibles - software 

As ofJune 3C 
2013 

$ 4.8 
17.1 

185.4 
10.6 
4.7 
0.9 

$ 223.5 

1, 

2012 
$ 4.8 

13.3 
189.0 

114 
5.3 
1.1 

$ 224.9 

Major capital projects during the 2012-13 school year included the following: 

• Oak Park remodeling 
• Various roofing repairs 
• Asbestos abatement at several locations 
• Parking lot resurfacing 
• Foundation & wall stabilization & repairs at various schools 
• Lighting retrofits 
• Security wiring and camera installations 
• Various fencing projects 

Long-Term Debt At the end ofthe cunent fiscal year, the Caddo Parish School Board had total debt outstanding of 
$129.2 million. Ofthe amount, $97.1 million comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit ofthe government. 
The following table summarizes bonds outstanding at June 30, 2013 and 2012. 
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Outstanding Debt 

Govemmental Activities 
2013 

$ 97.1 
-
1.4 

30.7 
$ 129.2 

2012 
$ 102.4 

0.7 
1.8 

33.3 
$ 138.2 

General obligation bonds 
Certificates of indebtedness 
Qualified Zone Academy Bond loan payable 
Qualified School Construction Bonds 

The only major changes in long-term debt for the 2012-2013 fiscal year was that the district refunded its 2005 general 
obligation bond issue, saving in excess of $1 million. 

For additional infonnation regarding capital assets and long-term debt, see notes 5 and 8 to the basic financial 
statements. 

Economic Factors and Next Year 's Budgets and Rates 

The following economic factors were considered when the budget for FY 2013-2014 was presented to the Board: 

• Property taxes were projected to remain the same as FY 2012-13 
• Sales tax revenue was projected to increase 1.0%> from actual FY 2012-13 
• State Minimum Foundation Funding was budgeted at the same level as FY 2012-13 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview ofthe Caddo Parish School Board's finances for all 
those with an interest in the Caddo Parish School Board's finances. Questions concerning any ofthe information 
provided in this report or request for additional financial infonnation should be addressed to James G. Lee, Chief 
Financial Officer, Caddo Parish School Board, P.O. Box 32000, Shreveport, LA 71130-2000, or by calling (318) 
603-6355, or by emailing jlee@caddo.kl2.1a.us. 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2013 

Statement A 

GOVERNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents S 139,576,450 
Receivables 19,364,108 
Inventory 1,335,918 
Prepaid items 500,448 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 18,898,164 
Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land 4,753,396 
Construction in progress 17,073,162 

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation 

Buildings and equipment 201,651,214 

TOTAL ASSETS 403,152.860 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 8,600,510 
Claims payable 8,463,915 
Salaries and wages payable 54,534,183 

Retainage payable 861,792 
Unearned revenue 269,702 
Interest payable - bonds 1,329,039 
Long-term liabilities: 

Due v/ithin one year 19,305,997 
Due in more than one year 657,709,380 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 751,074.518 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 94,274,181 

Restricted net position for: 
Debt service 11,953,725 
Instructional enhancement: 

Expendable 301,680 
Nonexpendable 18,898,164 

Child Nutrition Program 7,556,845 
Capital projects 12,349,297 

Unrestricted net position (493,255,550) 

TOTAL NET POSITION $ (347,921,658) 

THE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Statement B 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 

Governmental activities: 

Instruction: 

Regular programs 

Special programs 

Other instructional programs 

Support services: 

Student services 

Instructional staff support 

General administration 

School administration 

Business services 

Plant services 

Student transportation services 

Central services 

Food services 

Community service programs 

Interest on long-term debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

EXPENSES 

$ 195,084,770 

67,983,851 

54,757,387 

37,455,077 

30,971,011 

7,725,052 

36,116,588 

5,572,285 

76,112,607 

27,140,598 

7,582,203 

25,699,368 

733,392 

4,219,222 

$ 577,153,411 

PROGRAM REVENUES 

CHARGES FOR 

SERVICES 

$ 
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

306,000 

85,065 

-
1,878,669 

-
-

$ 2,269,734 

OPERATING 

GRANTS AND 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

$ 2,698,535 

1,110,984 

24,869,473 

6,511,107 

7,983,084 

281,502 

-
141,514 

323,159 

385,073 

228,172 

14,853,910 

555,374 

-
S 59,941,887 

NET (EXPENSE) 

REVENUE AND 

CHANGES IN 

NET POSITION 

S (192,386,235) 

(66,872,867) 

(29,887,914) 

(30,943,970) 

(22,987,927) 

(7,443,550) 

(36,116,588) 

(5,430,771) 

(75,483,448) 

(26,670,460) 

(7,354,031) 

(8,966,789) 

(178,018) 

(4,219,222) 

$ (514,941,790) 

General revenues: 

Taxes: 

Ad valorem taxes levied for general purposes 94,729,927 

Ad valorem taxes levied for debt service purposes 9,749,726 

Ad valorem taxes levied for capital improvements 19,255,954 

Sales taxes levied for salaries, benefits, 

and general purposes 71,286,828 

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 

State revenue sharing 2,234,118 

Minimum Foundation Program 201,890,754 

Interest and investment earnings 659,239 

Miscellaneous 7,010,033 

Total general revenues 406,816,579 

Changes in net position 

Net position - beginning 

Net position - ending 

(108,125,211) 

(239,796,447) 

$ (347,921,658) 

THE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2013 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents -

restricted 

Receivables 

Interfund receivables 

Inventory 

Prepaid items 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Salaries and wages payable 

Interfund payables 

Unearned revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 

Nonspendable 

Restricted 

Committed 

Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

GENERAL 

2,044,769 
47,630,423 

196,650 

49,871,842 

1,491,789 

21,378,512 
29,695,614 

52,565,915 

PERMANENT 

FUND-

CEEF 

NON MAJOR 

GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS 

Statement C 

TOTAL 

$ 86,858,527 

-
8,463,350 
5,624,091 

991,789 
500,000 

102,437,757 

$ 

18,898,164 

-
-
-
-

18,898,164 

$ 37,155,658 1 

-
10,900,758 

-
344,129 

448 

48,400,993 

$ 124,014,185 

18,898,164 
19,364,108 
5,624,091 
1,335,918 

500,448 

169,736,914 

18.898,164 

18,898,164 

3,427,616 
6,903,760 
5,624,091 

73,052 

16,028,519 

344,577 
31,816,970 

210,927 

32,372,474 

5,472,385 
54,534,183 

5,624,091 
269,702 

65.900,361 

20,734,530 
31,816,970 
21,589,439 
29,695,614 

103,836,553 

$ 102,437,757 $ 18,898,164 $ 48,400,993 $ 169,736,914 

THE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Reconciliation ofthe Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2013 

Statement D 

Total fund balances - governmental funds at June 30, 2013 $ 103,836,553 

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, furniture and equipment) purchased or constructed is 
reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. The Statement of Net Position includes those 
capital assets among the assets of the School Board as a whole. The cost of those capital assets 
allocated over their estimated useful lives (as depreciation expense) to the various programs is 
reported as governmental activities in the Statement of Activities. Because depreciation expense 
does not affect financial resources, it is not reported in governmental funds. 

Costs of capital assets 
Accumulated depreciation 

S 448,658,894 
(225,181,122) 

223,477,772 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain 
activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities ofthe 
internal service funds are reported in the government wide statements. (99,667,323) 

Long-term liabilities applicable to the School Board's governmental activities are not due and 
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities -
both current and long term - are reported in the Statement of Net Position. 

Long-term liabilities 
General obligation bonds payable 
Qualified Zone Academy bonds 
Qualified School Construction bond 
Compensated absences payable 
OPEB liability (prior to self insurance) 
Claims & judgments payable 

Interest payable 
Retainage payable 

(97,100,000) 
(1,427,591) 

(30,676,000) 
(14,570,168) 

(426,453,109) 
(3,150,961) 
(1,329,039) 

(861,792) 
(575,568,660) 

Net Position at June 30, 2013 S (347,921,658) 

THE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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REVENUES 

Local sources: 

Taxes: 

Ad valorem 

Sales and use 

Interest earnings 

Food services 

Other 

State sources: 

Equalization 

Other 

Federal sources 

CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Sta tement of Revenues, Expend i tu res , 

and Changes in Fund Ba lances 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

PERMANENT 

FUND-

CEEF GENERAL 

NON MAJOR 

GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS 

Statement E 

TOTAL 

94,729,927 $ 
71,286,828 

438,784 

-
7,571,472 

197,697,138 
2,120,484 
1,348,050 

- $ 
-

27,548 

-
830,630 

-
-
-

29,005,680 S 
-

189,550 
1,878,245 

-

4,193,616 
1,993,106 

56,714,365 

i 123,735,607 
71,286,828 

655,882 
1,878,245 
8,402,102 

201,890,754 
4,113,590 

58,062,415 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

Instruction: 

Regular programs 

Special programs 

Other instructional programs 

Support services: 

Student services 

Instructional staff support 

General administration 

School administration 

Business services 

Plant services 

Student transportation services 

Central services 

Food services 

Community service programs 

Capital outlay 

Debt service: 

Principal retirement 

Interest and bank charges 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

375,192,683 

150,311,424 

52,714,817 

24,937,916 

23,376,393 

16,832,512 

4,047,312 

28,301,020 

4,192,387 

42,550,325 

21,898,576 

5,966,917 

1,893 

3,407 

2,791,545 

770,000 

33,803 

378,730,247 

$ (3,537,564) $ 

858,178 

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-

858,178 $ 

93,974,562 

3,388,451 

1,071,221 

21,086,556 

6,014,014 

7,985,764 

2,988,154 

-
179,176 

16,077,053 

384,984 

228,172 

22,108,037 

555,374 

12,987,156 

8,339,731 

4,330,726 

107,724,569 

470,025,423 

153,699,875 

53,786,038 

46,024,472 

29,390,407 

24,818,276 

7,035,466 

28,301,020 

4,371,563 

58,627,378 

22,283,560 

6,195,089 

22,109,930 

558,781 

15,778,701 

9,109,731 

4,364,529 

486,454,816 

(13,750,007) $ (16,429,393) 

(CONTINUED) 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Sta tement of Revenues, Expend i tu res , 

and Changes in Fund Ba lances 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Sales of capital assets 

Refunding bonds 

Premium on bond issuance 

Payments to escrow agent 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

Statement E 

GENERAL 

85.065 

PERMANENT 
FUND-

CEEF 

$ 
(27,178) 

-
-
-
-

NON MAJOR 
GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS 

S 27,178 3 

-
306,424 

15,280,000 

1,224,944 

(16,504,944) 

TOTAL 

; 27,178 

(27,178) 

391,489 

15,280,000 

1,224,944 

(16,504,944) 

85.065 (27,178) 333,602 391.489 

(3,452,499) 

56,018,414 

831,000 

18,067,164 

(13,416,405) (16,037,904) 

45,788,879 119,874,457 

S 52,565,915 $ 18,898,164 $ 32,372,474 $ 103,836,553 

(CONCLUDED) 

THE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Reconciliation o f the Governmental Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Statement F 

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds $ (16,037,904) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement 

of Activities, the cost of those assets over specific capitalization thresholds is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
capital outlays exceeds depreciation in the period: 

Capital asset disposals, net (1,125,950) 
Capital outlay additions 15,778,701 
Depreciation expense (16,069,228) (1,416,477) 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources of 
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term 
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. 

Repayment of bond principal 25,614,675 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources of governmental funds. 

For the government wide statements bond proceeds are recorded as long term debt. (16,564,944) 

Intemal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to 
individual funds. The net revenue ofthe internal service fund is reported with 
governmental activities. (99,667,323) 

Governmental funds report the effects of debt issuance costs and similar items 
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized 
in the statement of activities priot to adoption of GASB 63. 

Write off of bond issuance costs (174,005) 

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount 
reported in the governmental funds because interest is recognized as an 
expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus requires the use of current 
financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, interest expense is 
recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due. 98,664 

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses-compensated absences (vacations and 
sick leave) - are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, 
however, expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used 
(essentially, the amounts actually paid). This year, vacation and sick time used ($10,149,057) 
exceeded the amounts earned $9,860,835 by $288,222. 288,222 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities are not matured and, therefore, 

are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds - claims and judgments and retainage. (266,119) 

Change in net position of governmental activities. $ (108,125,211) 

THE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2013 

Statement G 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents S 15,562,265 

TOTAL ASSETS 15,562,265 

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 3,128,125 

Claims payable 8,463,915 

Total current liabilities 11,592,040 

Non current liabilities: 

OPEB liability 103,637,548 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 115,229.588 

NET POSITION 

Unrestricted net position (99,667,323) 

TOTAL NET POSITION S (99,667,323) 

THE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 

Changes in Fund Net Position 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

OPERATING REVENUE 

Premiums 

Health insurance refund 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Medical Claims 

Prescription Claims 

Administration 

Total operating expenses 

Statement H 

22,495,916 

3,977,198 

26,473,114 

117,793,608 

7,593,272 

756,914 

126,143,794 

Operating income (loss) (99,670,680) 

NON OPERATING REVENUES 

Earnings on investments 3,357 

Changes in net position (99,667,323) 

NET POSITION - BEGINNING 

NET POSITION-ENDING (99,667,323) 

THE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Statement I 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Premiums received 

Health insurance refund 

Claims paid 

Administrative fees paid 

22,495,916 

3,977,198 
(10,157,292) 

(756,914) 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 15,558.908 

CASH FLOW FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Earnings on investments 3,357 

Net cash provided (used) from investing activities 3,357 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 15.562,265 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING 15,562,265 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities: 

increase (decrease) in accounts payable 

increase (decrease) in claims payable 

increase (decrease) in OPEB liability 

(99,670,680) 

3,128,125 
8,463,915 

103,637.548 

Net cash provided (used) for operating activities 15,558,908 

THE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

June 30, 2013 

Statement J 

OTHER POST 
EMPLOYMENT 
BENEFITS 

TRUST FUND 
AGENCY 
FUNDS 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments - CDs 
Investments - Corporate bonds 
Investments - U. S. government securities 
Receivables 

1,357,507 

10,502,398 
2,816,028 
1,746,756 

4,485,282 
522,145 

TOTAL ASSETS 16,422,689 5,007,427 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits due others 5,007,427 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,007,427 

NET POSITION 
Restricted for OPEB 16,422,689 S 

THE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

FIDUCIARY FUND 
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

June 30, 2013 

Statement K 

OTHER POST 
EMPLOYMENT 
BENEFITS 

TRUST FUND 

ADDITIONS 
Employer contributions 
Earnings on investments 

Total additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
General and administrative expenses 

Change in net position 

Net position - beginning 

Net position - ending 

4,413,933 
251,831 

4,665,764 

216,219 

4,449,545 

11,973,144 

16,422,689 

THE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES The accompanying fmancial 
statements ofthe Caddo Parish School Board have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to govemmental units. The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. 

A. REPORTING ENTITY The Caddo Parish School Board was created by Louisiana Revised Statute LSA-R.S. 
17:51 to provide public education for the children within Caddo Parish. The School Board is authorized by LSA-
R.S. 17:81 to establish policies and regulations for its own govermnent consistent with the laws ofthe state of 
Louisiana and the regulations ofthe Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. The School Board is 
comprised of twelve members who are elected from twelve districts for terms of four years. 

The School Board operates 64 schools within the parish with a total enrollment of approximately 41,000 pupils in 
the 12-13 school year. In conjunction with the regular educational programs, some of these schools offer special 
education and/or adult education programs. In addition, the School Board provides transportation and school food 
services for the students. 

The School Board is considered a primary government, since it is a special-purpose government that has a separately 
elected goveming body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of other state or local governments. Fiscally 
independent means that the School Board may, without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, 
determine or modify its own budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and issue bonded debt. The School 
Board also has no component units as other legally separate organizations for which the elected School Board 
members are financially accountable. There are no other primary govermnents with which the School Board has a 
significant relationship. 

B. FUNDS The accounts of the School Board are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an 
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds 
according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related 
legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial 
requirements. 

The funds ofthe School Board are classified into three categories: govemmental, proprietary and fiduciary. 

Governmental Funds Govemmental funds are used to account for the School Board's general govermnent 
activities, including the collection and disbursement of specific or legally restricted monies, the acquisition or 
construction of capital assets, and the servicing of long-term debt. The School Board reports the following major 
governmental funds: 

General fund - the primary operating fund ofthe School Board accounts for all financial resources, except those 
accounted for in other funds. 

Permanent Fund - CEEF - used to account for the Caddo Educational Excellence Fund. These monies are held 
by the School Board in trust and the principal cannot be expended. 

Proprietary Funds: Proprietary funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the 
determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration. Proprietary funds differ from 
govemmental funds in that their focus is on measurement, which, together with the maintenance of equity is an 
important financial indicator. The School Board reports the following proprietary fund: 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Internal Service Fund - used to account for health insurance for employees of the School Board on a cost 
reimbursement basis. 

Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity or as an agent on 
behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the School Board. 

Agency funds are used to account for assets that the government holds for others in an agency capacity. These 
agency funds are as follows: 

School Activities fund - accounts for assets held by the School Board as an agent for the individual schools and 
school organizations. 

Office Concession Agency fund - accounts for monies collected by school board employees working in the 
central office coffee shop for the purpose of replenishing items sold and maintenance of coffee shop equipment. 

Pension (and Other Post Employment Benefits) Trust Funds are used to report resources that are required to be held 
in trust for the members and beneficiaries of defined benefit pension plans, defined contributions plans, other 
postemployment benefit plans, or other employee benefit plans. 

Other Post Employment Benefits Trust Fund - accounts for the assets held in an irrevocable trust for payment 
of retirees' health insurance premiums. 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
displays information about the reporting govermnent as a whole. Fiduciary funds are not included in the GWFS. 
Fiduciary funds are reported only in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary 
Net Position at the fund financial statement level. 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities were prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities 
resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, 
expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from non-exchange transactions are recognized in accordance 
with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting, and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange 
Transactions. The effect of Interfund Activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wide financial statements. 

Internal activities: The employees' medical insurance intemal service fund provides services to the govemmental 
funds. Accordingly, the employees' insurance fund activity was rolled up into the govemmental activities. Pursuant 
to GASB Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and 
Local Governments, as much as possible, the internal activities have been eliminated in order to avoid the "grossing-
up" effect of a straight inclusion. The interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of 
consolidation. 

Program revenues Program revenues include charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and grants and contributions that 
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other 
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Allocation of indirect expenses: The School Board reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of 
Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Depreciation expense is included 
in the direct expense of each function. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is 
reported separately on the Statement of Activities. 

Fund Financial Statements (FFS) 

Governmental Funds The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its 
measurement focus. Govermnental fund types use the fiow of current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accmal basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recognized when 
susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they are "measurable and available"). "Measurable" means the amount ofthe 
transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter 
to pay liabilities ofthe current period. The govemment considers all revenues available if they are collected within 
60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured 
principal and interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due. Compensated absences and claims 
and judgments are reported in a governmental fund only if the claims are due and payable. 

With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. 
Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases in net current assets. The govermnental funds 
use the following practices in recording revenues and expenditures; 

Revenues 

Ad valorem taxes are recognized when all applicable eligibility requirements are met and the resources are 
available. 

Sales taxes are recognized when underlying exchange transaction occurs and the resources are available. 

Enfitlements and shared revenues (which include state equalization and state revenue sharing) are recorded 
as unrestricted grants-in-aid at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. 
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and 
all other grant requirements have been met and the susceptible to accrual criteria have been met. 

Other receipts become measurable and available when cash is received by the School Board and are 
recognized as revenue at that time. 

Expenditures 

Salaries are recorded as paid. Salaries for nine-month employees are accrued at June 30. 

Other financing sources (uses) are transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid (or any other 
types, such as capital lease transactions, sale of fixed assets, debt extinguishments, long-term debt proceeds, et 
cetera) are accounted for as other financing sources (uses). These other financing sources (uses) are 
recognized at the time the underlying events occur. 
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Proprietary Fund: Proprietary fund is accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and 
use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated 
with the operation of this fund are included on the balance sheet. 

Operafing revenues and expenses: Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with 
the fund's principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Fiduciary Funds: The agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not present results of 
operations or have a measurement focus. Agency and trust funds are accounted for using the accmal basis of 
accounting. The trust fund uses the economic resources measurement focus. 

D. BUDGETS 

General Budget Pohcies The School Board follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in 
the combined financial statements: 

State statute requires budgets be adopted for the general fund and all special revenue funds. Each year prior to 
September 15, the Superintendent submits to the Board members the proposed annual budgets for the general fund 
and all special revenue funds. Public hearings are conducted, prior to the Board members' approval, to obtain 
citizens' comments. The operating budgets include proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

Appropriations (unexpended budget balances) lapse at year end. 

Formal budget integration (within the accounting records) is employed as a management control device. All budgets 
are controlled at the division, departmental or project level. School Board policy prescribes that the level of 
budgetary control is at the functional level for the general fund and at the fund level for the special revenue funds. 

Encumbrances Encumbrance accounting is employed in govemmental funds. Outstanding encumbrances lapse at 
year end. To the extent the School Board intends to honor the purchase orders and commitments, they are reported 
as restricted or committed fund balances in the fund financial statements. Authorization for the eventual expenditure 
will be included in the following year's budget appropriations. 

Budget Basis of Accounting All governmental funds' budgets are prepared on the modified accmal basis of 
accounting. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the School Board. Legally, the School 
Board must adopt a balanced budget; that is, total budgeted revenues and other financing sources including fund 
balance must equal or exceed total budgeted expenditures and other financing uses. State statutes require the School 
Board to amend its budgets when revenues plus projected revenues within a fund are expected to be less than 
budgeted revenues by five percent or more and/or expenditures plus projected expenditures within a fund are 
expected to exceed budgeted expenditures by five percent or more. The School Board approves budgets at the 
functional level and management can transfer amounts between line items within a function. Amendments to the 
budget during the year were considered to be insignificant. 

E. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Cash includes amounts in demand deposits and interest-bearing demand 
deposits, and time deposit accounts. Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and those investments with 
original maturities of 90 days or less. Under state law, the School Board may deposit funds in demand deposits. 
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interest-bearing demand deposits, or time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national 
banks having their principal offices in Louisiana. 

F. INVESTMENTS Investments are limited by R.S. 33:2955 and the School Board's investment policy. If the 
original maturities of investments exceed 90 days, they are classified as investments; however, if the original 
maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents. 

The investments are reflected at fair value except for the following which are required/permitted as per GASB 
Statement No. 31: 

1. Investments in nonparticipating interest-earning contracts, such as nonncgotiable certificates of deposit with 
redemption terms that do not consider market rates, are reported using a cost-based measure. 

2. The School Board reported at amortized cost money market investments and participating interest-earning 
investment contracts that have a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less. 

Definitions: 

Interest-eaming investment contracts include time deposits with financial institutions (such as certificates of 
deposit), repurchase agreements, and guaranteed investment contracts. 

Money market investments are short-term, highly liquid debt instruments that include U. S. Treasury 
obligations. 

G. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES During the course of operations, numerous 
transactions occur between individual funds for ser\dces rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as 
due from other funds or due to other funds on the fund financial statements balance sheet. Short-term interfund 
loans are classified as interfund receivables/payables. 

H. ELIMINATION AND RECLASSIFICATIONS In the process of aggregating data for the statement of net 
position and the statement of activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were 
eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing up" effect 
on assets and liabilities within the govemmental activities column. Interfund services provided or used are not 
eliminated in the process of consolidation. 

I. INVENTORY AND PREPAID ITEMS Inventory is recorded as expenses when consumed on the govemment-
wide financial statements and as expenditures when purchased on the fund financial statements. 

Inventory ofthe child nutrition program special revenue fund consists of food purchased by the School Board and 
commodities granted by the United States Department of Agriculture through the Louisiana Department of 
Agriculture and Forestry. Unused commodities at June 30 are reported as unearned revenue. All purchased 
inventory items are valued at cost (first-in, first-out) and commodities are assigned values based on information 
provided by the United States Department of Agriculture. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items 
in both govemment-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid items are accounted for using the consumption 
method. 

J. CAPITAL ASSETS Capital assets are recorded at historical cost and depreciated over their estimated useful 
lives (excluding salvage value). The School Board maintains a threshold level for capitalization ofthe following: 
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$100,000 for buildings, building improvements and intangibles, $50,000 for land and land improvements, $100,000 
for intangibles and $5,000 for equipment and vehicles. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair 
value at the date of donation. 

Estimated useful life is management's estimate of how long the asset is expected to meet service demands. Vehicles 
and trailers are assigned a salvage value often percent of historical costs. Straight line depreciation is used based on 
the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 25 - 45 years 
Land Improvements 10-25 years 
Building Improvements 10-30 years 
Furniture and equipment 5 - 2 0 years 
Vehicles 5 - 8 years 
Intangibles - software 10 years 
Intangibles - Other 10 years 

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. 

K. UNEARNED REVENUES The School Board reports deferred revenues on its Statement of Net Position and 
fund balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when resources are received by the School Board before it has a legal 
claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent 
periods, when the School Board has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed and 
the revenue is recognized. 

L. COMPENSATED ABSENCES All 12-month employees cam ten to twenty days of vacation leave each year 
depending upon length of service. Vacation leave may be accumulated up to one hundred and fifty percent of their 
annual allotment. Upon termination, employees may be paid for their accumulated balance. 

All School Board employees earn twelve to sixteen days of sick leave eachyear depending upon length of service. 
Sick leave may be accumulated without limitation. Upon retirement or death unused accumulated sick leave of up to 
25 days is paid to employees per Louisiana Revised Statute 17:425 at the employees current rate of pay and all 
unused sick leave is used in the retirement computation as earned service. 

Sabbatical leave may be granted for medical reasons and for professional and cultural improvement. Any employee 
with a teaching certificate is entitled, subject to approval by the School Board, to one semester of sabbatical leave 
after three years of continuous service or two semesters of sabbatical leave after six or more years of continuous 
service. 

The School Board's recognition and measurement criteria for compensated absences follow: 

Vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar characteristics should be accrued as a liability as the 
benefits are earned by the employees if both ofthe following conditions are met: 

1. The employees' right to receive compensation is attributable to services already rendered. 
2. It is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or 

some other means, such as cash payments at termination or retirement. 

A liability for sick leave should be accrued using one ofthe following termination approaches; 
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1. An accrual for earned sick leave should be made only to the extent it is probable that the benefits will 
result in termination payments, rather than be taken as absences due to illness or other contingencies, such 
as medical appointments and funerals. 

2. Alternatively, a govermnental entity should estimate its accmed sick leave liability based on the sick leave 
accumulated at the balance sheet date by those employees who currently are eligible to receive 

termination payments as well as other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to 
receive such payments. The School Board uses the latter approach to accrue the liability for sick leave 
which includes salary-related payments. Employees with ten years or more of experience are included. 

Sabbatical leave benefits are accrued in the govemment-wide financial statements if they are based on past service, 
will be used as unrestricted time off, and are probable of being paid. In the fund financial statements, sabbatical 
leave benefits are recorded in the govermnental fund only if the benefits are due and payable. 

All School Board employees earn 90 days of extended sick leave that can be used over a 6 year period. It is paid at a 
rate of 65% of their daily rate of pay. At the end of each 6 year period, the available days is reset to 90 days. All 
School Board employees earn 30 days catastrophic sick days that can be used over a 6 year period. It is paid at 50% 
of their daily rate of pay. At the end of each 6 year period, the available days is reset to 30 days. 

M. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES In addifion to assets, the statement of net position 
will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement 
element, deferred outflows o/resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) 
and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The School Board does 
not have an item that qualifies for reporting in this category. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenues) until that 
time. The School Board does not have an item that qualifies for reporting in this category. 

N. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES For govemment-wide reporting, the costs associated with the bonds are 
recognized over the life ofthe bond. For fund financial reporting, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance 
costs are recognized in the period the bonds are issued. Bond proceeds are reported as other financing source net of 
the applicable premium or discount. Issuance costs, even if withheld from the actual net proceeds received, are 
reported as debt service expenditures. 

O. RESTRICTED NET POSITION For the govermnent-wide statement of net position, net position are reported 
as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either; 

Externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
govermnents; or, imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Net Position as of June 30, 2013 that is restricted by enabling legislation in $43,502,866. 
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P. FUND BALANCES OF FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GASB 54 requires the fiind balance amounts 
to be reported within the fund balance categories as follows: 

Non-spendable: Fund balance that is not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. This category includes items that are not easily converted to cash such as inventories. 

Restricted: Fund balance that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by constitution, external 
resource providers, or through enabling legislation. 

Committed: Fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes determined by the School Board's highest 
level of decision making authority. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board 
removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to previously commit the funds. 
Committed fund balance is the result of resolutions that were passed at a School Board meeting committing the 
funds. 

Assigned: Fund balance that is constrained by the School Board's intent to be used for specific purposes, but are 
neither restricted nor committed. The School Board currently does not have a policy authorizing the assignment of 
fund balance. 

Unassigned: Fund balance that is the residual classification for the general fund. A negative unassigned fund 
balance may be reported in other govemmental funds if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the 
amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the govemment's policy to use 
unrestricted resources first, then restricted resources as necessary. The School Board reduces committed amounts, 
followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which 
amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. 

Q. INTERFUND ACTIVITY Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or 
transfers. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market, or near market rates, are treated as revenues and 
expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund, 
and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers 
between govemmental funds are netted as part ofthe reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. 

R. SALES TAXES The Caddo Parish School Board has the following three sales tax ordinances: 

The voters ofCaddo Parish approved on June 6, 1967, a one-halfofone percent (1/2%) parish-wide sales tax to 
be used to supplement salaries of teachers of Caddo Parish and for the operation of public schools in Caddo 
Parish. 

The voters of Caddo Parish approved on May 27,1969, a one-halfofone percent (1/2%) parish-wide sales tax to 
be used to supplement salaries of teachers of Caddo Parish and for the operation of public schools in Caddo 
Parish. 

The voters of Caddo Parish approved on May 4, 1985, a one-halfofone percent (1/2%) parish-wide sales tax to 
be used to supplement salaries of teachers of Caddo Parish and other School Board employees and for the 
operation of public schools in Caddo Parish. 
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S. USE OF ESTIMATES The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statement and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

NOTE 2 -LEVIED TAXES The School Board levies taxes on real and business personal property located within 
Caddo Parish's boundaries. Property taxes are levied by the School Board on property values assessed by the Caddo 
Parish Tax Assessor and approved by the State of Louisiana Tax Conunission. 

The Caddo Parish Sheriffs office bills and collects property taxes for the School board. Collections are remitted to 
the School Board monthly. 

Property Tax Calendar 
Levy date January 1, 2012 
Millage rates adopted May 22, 2013 
Tax bills mailed November 25, 2012 
Due date December 31, 2012 
Lien date January 1, 2013 
Tax sales - 2011 delinquent property May 14,2013 

Assessed values are established by the Caddo Parish Tax Assessor each year on a uniform basis at the following 
ratios of assessed value to fair market value. 

10% land 15% machinery 
10% residential improvements 15% commercial improvements 
15% industrial improvements 25% public service properties, excluding land 

A revaluation of all property is required after 1978 to be completed no less than every four years. The last 
revaluation was completed for the roll of January 1,2012. Total assessed value was $1,974,937,310 in calendar year 
2012. Louisiana state law exempts the first $75,000 of assessed value of a taxpayer's primary residence from parish 
property taxes. The homestead exemption was $347,726,690 ofthe assessed value in calendar year 2012. 

State law requires the sheriff to collect property taxes in the calendar year in which the assessment is made. Property 
taxes become delinquent January 1 ofthe following year. If taxes are not paid by the due date, taxes bear interest at 
the rate of 1.00% per month until the taxes are paid. After notice is given to the delinquent taxpayers, the sheriff is 
required by the Constitution ofthe State of Louisiana to sell the least quantity of property necessary to settle the 
taxes and interest owed. 

All property taxes are recorded in the general fund, parish-wide capital projects fund, and debt service fund. 
Revenues in such funds are recognized in the accounting period in which an enforceable legal claim arises. 
Estimated uncollectible taxes are those taxes based on past experience which will not be collected in the subsequent 
year and are primarily due to subsequent adjustments to the tax roll. The School Board uses the Hen date to establish 
the enforceable legal claim date. No receivable has been recorded for 2013 property taxes because the lien date is 
subsequent to year end. 

The tax roll is prepared by the parish tax assessor in November of each year; therefore, the bulk of property taxes are 
collected by the Sheriff in December, January, and February. 
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Historically, virtually all ad valorem taxes receivable were collected since they are secured by property; therefore, 
there is no allowance for uncollectible taxes. 

The following is a summary of authorized and levied (tax rate per $1,000 assessed value) ad valorem taxes: 

Parish-wide taxes: 
Constitutional 
Maintenance and operation 
Operation, Maintenance, and Support 
Employee Salaries & Benefits 
Technology 
Special Building, Repair, & Equipment 
Special Renovations 
Bond and Interest 

Date of Voter 
Approval 

Statutory 
July 20, 2002 
July 20, 2002 
January 21, 2006 
January 21, 2006 
July 20, 2002 
January 21,2006 
October 18, 1997 

Authorized 
Millage 

8.48 
17.11 
11.26 
21.79 

1.35 
6.86 
5.56 

Variable 

Levied 
Millage 

7.85 
17.11 
11.26 
20.18 

1.25 
6.86 
5.15 
6.00 

Expiratio 
n Date 

n/a 
2023 
2024 
2016 
2016 
2023 
2016 
2033 

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Governmental and Agency Funds 

Deposits are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank 
balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. 
The fair value ofthe pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on 
deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name ofthe pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or 
custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. 

Custodial credit risk: At year-end, the School Board's carrying amount of deposits was $163,482,041 and the bank 
balance was $ 166,072,821. 

These deposits are reported as follows: Statement A-cash and cash equivalents, $139,576,450; Statement A-
restricted cash and cash equivalents, $18,898,164; and Statement J-cash and cash equivalents, $5,007,427. Ofthe 
bank balance, $47,712,444 was uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 
institution's trust department or agent but not in the School Board's name and $1,925,999 was not secured. Even 
though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40, 
Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the 
pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the School Board that the fiscal agent has failed to pay 
deposited funds upon demand. The School Board's investment policy does not specifically address custodial credit 
risk. 

The deposits include a balance of $112,516,979 in a sweep account. Funds in this account are invested in U. S. 
Government securities at night and swept back to the bank account the next morning. The agreement with the bank 
specifies that all purchased securities in the possession ofthe bank shall be segregated from other securities in its 
possession and shall be identified as subject to the terms ofthe agreement. 

Restricted cash is reported on the statement of net position. This is cash in the Caddo Educational Excellence Fund 
(CEEF) pennanent fund. 
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Other Post Employment Benefits Trust Fund 

The School Board follows the state law regarding investments in post employment benefits funds by political 
subdivisions, R.S. 33:5161 and R.S. 33:5162. In summary, ftinds may be invested in direct U.S. Treasury 
Obligations, debt which is issued or guaranteed by federal agencies and backed by the full faith and credit ofthe 
U.S., direct security repurchase agreements of any federal book-entry only securities, debt issued by Corporations of 
the U.S. which are rated Baa or better by Moody's, Inc. or BBB or better by Fitch or Standard and Poor's 
Corporation, money market mutual funds or Louisiana Asset Management Pool. 

Interest Rate Risk; The state law does not address specific policies for managing interest rate risk. The following 
table provides information about interest rate risk associated with the other post employment benefits trust fund. 

Description of investment 

U. S. govermnent securities 
Corporate bonds 

Total 

Maturity 

Fair Value 

$ 2,816,028 
10,502,398 

$ 13,318,426 

Less than 1 
Year 

$ 
930,619 

$ 930,619 

1 - 3 Years 

$ 407,922 
5,407,470 

$ 5,815,392 

3-5 Years 

$ 1,916,336 
3,583,217 

$ 5,499,553 

5-7 Years 

$ 491,770 
581,092 

$ 1,072,862 

Custodial Credit Risk; The School Board's policy regarding custodial credit risk is that funds on deposit shall be 
collateralized an amount at all times equal to 100% by pledged '^''approved securities" as specified by La. R.S 
39:1225 as amended to adequately protect the fiinds ofthe School Board. Cash of $1,357,507 is held in a trust 
account. 

Credit Rate Risk: The credit risk of the other post employment benefits trust fund is managed by restricting 
investments to those authorized by R.S. 33:5162. The School Board's policy does not address credit rate risk. 

Description of investment Fair Value 

U. S. government securities $ 2,816,028 
Corporate bonds 10,502,398 

Total $ 13,318,426 

Rating by Standard & Poor's 
AA 

$ 2,816,028 
534,524 

$ 3,350,552 

A 

4.731,068 

BBB 

5,236,806 

$ 4,731,068 $ 5,236,806 

Concentration of Credit Risk: R.S. 33:5162 provides that all fixed income investments shall be appropriately 
diversified by maturity, security, sector, and credit quality. At June 30, 2013, no more than 5 percent ofthe other 
post employment benefits trust fund's total investments were investments in any single issuer. 
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NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES The receivables at June 30, 2013, are as follows: 

Class of Receivables General 
Non Major 

Governmental Total 
Taxes: 

Ad Valorem 
Sales Tax 

Intergovemmental 

grants: 

Federal 

State 

Other 
Total 

$ 

$ 

865.985 
6,135,800 

329,893 

642,594 

489,078 
8,463,350 

$ 

$ 

270,535 
-

10,225,205 

403,131 

1.887 
10,900,758 

$ 

$ 

1,136,520 
6,135,800 

10,555,098 

1,045,725 

490,965 
19,364,108 

No allowance for doubtful accounts has been established as the School Board expects to collect the full balance. 

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS Capital assets balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 are as 
follows: 

Govemmental activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings & improvements 
Fumiture and equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Intagibles - software 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Total cost of capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Buildings & improvements 
Fumiture and equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Intagibles - software 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

Govemmental activities 
Capital assets, net 

Balance Beginning 

$ 4,794,924 
13,321,013 

18,115,937 

355,337,998 
28,015,773 
34,270,182 

1,515,518 

419,139,471 

437,255,408 

166,381,448 
16,623,872 
28,925,597 

430,242 

212,361,159 

206,778,312 

$ 224,894,249 

Additions 

$ 
12,614,955 

12,614,955 

8,862,806 
3,021,155 

142,591 
-

12,026,552 

24,641,507 

11,391,863 
3,757,583 

768,230 
151,552 

16,069,228 

(4,042,676) 

$ 8,572,279 

Deletions 

$ 41,528 
8.862.806 

8,904,334 

2,261,221 
2,072,466 

-
-

4,333,687 

13,238,021 

1,185,832 
2,063,433 

-
-

3,249,265 

1,084,422 

$ 9,988,756 

Balance Ending 

$ 4,753,396 
17,073,162 

21,826,558 

361,939,583 
28,964,462 
34,412,773 

1,515,518 

426,832,336 

448,658,894 

176,587,479 
18,318,022 
29,693,827 

581,794 

225,181,122 

201,651,214 

$ 223,477,772 
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Depreciation expense was charged to govemmental activities as follows: 

Regular programs 
Special programs 
Other instructional programs 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
School administration 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Food services 

Total depreciation expense 

NOTE 6 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

The School Board provides retirement, death, and disability benefits to its employees through two pension plans 
administered by the state of Louisiana. These plans are; 

Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL) 

Plan Description 

Participation in the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana is divided into two cost sharing multiple-employer 
statewide plans — the Regular Plan and the Plan A. In general, the Regular Plan includes professional employees 
(such as teachers and principals) and Plan A members consist of lunchroom workers. Benefit provisions are 
established in accordance with Louisiana state statute. TRSL issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary infonnation. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Board of Trustees ofthe Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana, P.O. Box 94123, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70804-9123. 

Funding Policy 

Covered employees are required to contribute 8.0% of their salary to the Regular Plan. The School Board was 
required to contribute 24.5%, 23.7%, and 20.2% of covered employees' salaries forthe years ended June 2013,2012, 
and 2011, respectively. Covered employees are required to contribute 9.1 % of their salary to the Plan A. 

The employer and employee contribution obligations are established and may be amended by Louisiana state statute. 
The School Board's contributions for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $50,204,612, 

$50,961,128, and$46,492,794,respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. Covered employees' 
salarieswere$204,882,322, $217,475,427, and $230,162,345, for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, 
respectively. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local 
Governmental Employers, the net pension obligation was determined to be zero. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan 

Effective July 1, 1992, the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana adopted a Deferred Retirement Option Plan 
(DROP). Under the DROP, a member is allowed to retire and accumulate his/her retirement benefits in a special 
reserve fund and yet continue employment and draw a salary. Upon termination of employment at the end ofthe 
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specified period, the monthly retirement benefits and the amounts paid into the DROP will begin being paid to the 
retiree. 

Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (School Employees' Plan) 

Plan Description 

All bus drivers, bus aides, maintenance employees, and custodians are members of this cost-sharing multiple-
employer statewide plan. Benefit provisions are established in accordance with Louisiana state statute. The School 
Employees' Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Board of Trustees of the Louisiana 
School Employees' Retirement System, P.O. Box 44516, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-4516. 

Funding Policy 

Covered employees were required to contribute 7.5 or 8.0% of their salary to the School Employees' Plan for 2013, 
2012, and 2011. The School Board was required to contribute 30.8% of covered employees' salaries for 2013, 
28.6% for 2012, and 24.3% for 2011. The School Board's contributions were $6,009,390, $5,828,703, and 
$5,348,467 for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively, equal to the required contributions for 
the year. Thesecontributions were made for covered payroll of $19,510,863, $20,380,082, and $22,010,153, for the 
years ended June 30,2013,2012, and 2011, respectively. The employer and employee contribution requirements are 
established and may be amended by Louisiana state statute. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 27, the net 
pension obligation was determined to be zero. 

NOTE 7 - AGENCY FUND DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS (FFS LEVEL ONLY) A summary of changes in 
agency fund deposits due others follows: 

School Activities Fund 
Central Office Concession Fund 
School Activities Fund 

Balance June 30, 
2012 

$ 

$ 

4,672,405 
695 

4,673,100 

Additions 
$ 11,306,754 

24,319 
$ 11,331,073 

Deductions 
$ 10,972,957 

23,789 
$ 10,996,746 

Balance June 30, 
2013 

$ 

$ 

5,006,202 
1,225 

5,007,427 

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES The School Board has issued the following types of long-term habihties, 
all which pertain to the School Board's governmental activities. 

Bond Refunding: The School Board issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition of land for 
schools, to build new facilities and to improve capital assets. The original amount of general obligation bonds issued 
in prior years was $ 128,730,000. During the fiscal year, general obligation bonds totaling $ 15,280,000 were issued 
to refund $15,220,000 of Series 2005 bonds. The proceeds were placed in an irrevocable trust forthe purpose of 
generating resources for the payment of general obligation school bonds. Series 2005, consisting ofthe callable 
maturities of that issue which will be called for redemption on March 1, 2015. The advanced refunding was 
undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next seventeen years by $1,291,274 and resulted in an 
economic gain of $781,221. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of 
the School Board. These bonds generally are issued as 20- or 25-year serial bonds with varying amounts of principal 
maturing each year. 
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Qualified Academy Zone Bond: The School Board has also borrowed ftinds through this special interest-free loan 
program sponsored by the U.S. government to fund lighting retrofit programs and to install air-conditioning in 
school cafeterias. In February 2002, the School Board borrowed $3,500,000. In March 2008, the School Board 
borrowed $1,582,450 to fund technology wiring and disabled access projects. 

Qualified School Construction Bond: The School Board received authority under the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) to issue taxable bonds for construction, rehabilitation or repair of public school 
facilities. The bonds are interest free and bond holders receive a tax credit in lieu of interest. In June 2009, the 
School Board issued revenue bonds of $17,359,000 to be paid from the constitutional tax of 7.96 mills collected 
annually. In 2011 the School Board issued revenue bonds of $20,707,000 to be paid from the constitutional tax of 
7.96 mills collected annually. 

Summary of Transactions and Balances: The following is a summary ofthe long-term liabilities transactions and 
balances for the year ended June 30, 2013: 

Bonds payable: 

General Obligation debt 

Certificates of Indebtedness 

Qualified Zone Academy bond 

Qualified School Constmction bond 

Other liabilities: 

Compensated absences 

OPEB liability 

Claims & judgements payable 

Total 

Beginning 

Balance 

$ 102,350,000 

770,000 

1,840,381 

33,292,941 

14,858,390 

426,453,109 

3,150,961 

$582,715,782 

Additions 

S 15,280,000 

-
-
-

9,860,835 

131,221,191 

2,998,891 

$ 159,360,917 

Deletions 

$ 20.530,000 

770,000 

412,790 

2,616,941 

10,149,057 

27,583,643 

2.998,891 

$ 65,061,322 

Ending 

Balance 

$ 97,100,000 

-
1,427,591 

30,676,000 

14,570,168 

530,090.657 

3,150.961 

$677,015,377 

Amounts Due 

Withm One 

year 

$ 5,615,000 

-
412,790 

2,537,733 

10,149,057 

-
591,417 

$ 19,305,997 

Payments on the general obligation bonds payable that pertain to the School Board's govemmental activities are 
made by the debt service fund. The Qualified Zone Academy Bonds and Qualified School Constmction Bonds 
payments are made by the parishwide capital projects fund. The compensated absences liability attributable to the 
govemmental activities will be liquidated by several of the School Board's govemmental funds. In the past, 
approximately 92.9% was paid by the general fund and the remaining 7.1% by other governmental funds. Claims 
and judgments payable have typically been liquidated by the general fund. 
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General Obligation 
Series 2004 
Series 2005 
Series 2006 
Series 2007 
Series 2008 

I Bonds: 

Refunding Series 2005 Bonds 
Refunding Series 
Refunding Series 

. 2005A Bonds 
2010 Bond 

Refiinding Series 2012 Bond 
Refiinding Series 

QZAB 
Series 2002 
Series 2008 

QSCB 
Series 2009 
Series 2011 

.2013 Bond 

Original 
Amount 

$ 14,000,000 
20,000,000 
20,000,000 
20,000,000 
14,290,000 
12,405,000 
12,710,000 
5,365,000 
9,960,000 

15,280,000 

3,500,000 
1,582,450 

17,359,000 
20,707,000 

Interest Rates 

4.00 to 6.50% 
3.65 to 5.00% 
3.75 to 5.75% 
4.00 to 7.00% 
3.63 to 6.00% 
3.00 to 5.00% 
3.00 to 5.25% 

3.45% 
1.00 to 3.13% 
2.00 to 5.00% 

n/a 
n/a 

n/a 
n/a 

Range of 
Maturities 

3/1/07-3/1/18 
3/1/07-3/1/15 
3/1/08-3/1/31 
3/1/09 - 3/1/32 
3/1/10-3/1/33 
3/1/06-3/1/18 
3/1/06 - 3/1/20 
3/1/11-3/1/21 
3/1/13 - 3/1/29 
9/1/13-3/1/30 

5/1/02-11/1/15 
3/1/09-3/20/18 

6/1/10-6/1/24 
6/1/12-6/1/26 _ 

Interest to 
Maturity 

$ 246,937 
73,590 

8,126,613 
8,757,954 
6,597,218 
1,068,024 
2,035,411 

717,945 
3,041,100 
5,844,001 

n/a 
n/a 

n/a 
n/a 

$ 36,508,793 

Principal 
Outstanding 

$ 2,150,000 
1,265,000 

17,070,000 
17,625,000 
12,930,000 
6,920,000 
9,570,000 
4,425,000 
9,865,000 

15,280,000 

636.366 
791,225 

12,729,933 
17,946,067 

$ 129,203,591 

All principal and interest requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law by the annual ad valorem tax 
levy on taxable property within the parish. At June 30, 2013, the School Board had accumulated $11,953,725 in the 
debt service funds for future debt requirements. The bonds are due as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019-2023 
2024-2028 
2029-2032 
2033 
Total 

General Obligation Bonds 
Principal 
Payments 

$ 5,615,000 
5,910,000 
6,210,000 
6,540,000 
6,865,000 

24,095,000 
24,355,000 
16,510,000 
1,000,000 

$ 97,100,000 

Interest 
Payments 

$ 3,994,617 
3,741,782 
3,459,549 
3,171,566 
2,891,286 

11,000,425 
6,524,786 
1,681,032 

43,750 
$ 36,508,793 

QZAB Loan 
Principal 
Payments 

$ 412,790 
412,790 
285,520 
158,245 
158,246 

-
-
-
-

$1,427,591 

QSCB Loan 
Principal 
Payments 

$ 2,537,733 
2,537,733 
2,537,733 
2,537,733 
2,537,733 

12,688,667 
5,298,668 

-
-

$ 30,676,000 

TOTAL 
Principal 
Payments 

$ 8,565,523 
8,860,523 
9,033,253 
9,235,978 
9,560,979 

36,783,667 
29,653,668 
16,510,000 
1,000,000 

$129,203,591 

Interest 
Payments 

$ 3,994,617 
3,741,782 
3,459,549 
3,171,566 
2,891,286 

11,000,425 
6,524,786 
1,681,032 

43,750 
$ 36,508,793 

In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:562, the School Board is legally restricted from incurring long-
term bonded debt in excess of 35 percent ofthe assessed value of taxable property. At June 30,2013, the statutory 
limit is $691,228,059 and outstanding net bonded debt totals $85,146,275. 

The School Board defeased certain general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable 
tmst to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the 
liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the School Board's financial statements. At June 30, 2013, 
$24,350,000 of bonds outstanding are considered defeased. 
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NOTE 9 - INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES (FFS LEVEL ONLY) The composition of interftindbalances 
as of June 30, 2013, is as follows: 

Receivable Fund Amount Payable Fund Amount 
General $ 5,624,091 Non Major Governmental $ 5,624,091 

The purpose of the interfund assets/liabilities was to cover current-year expenditures on cost reimbursement 
programs until the payments between funds are made. 

NOTE 10 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS (FFS LEVEL ONLY) Transfers forthe year ended June 30,2013, were 
as follows; 

Fund 
Non Major Governmental 
Permanent Fund - CEEF 

Totals 

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that 
statute or budget requires to expend them. 

NOTE 11 - ENCUMBRANCES (FFS LEVEL ONLY) Encumbrances are not liabilities and, therefore, are not 
recorded as expenditures until receipt of material or service. For budgetary purposes, appropriations lapse at fiscal 
year-end and outstanding encumbrances are re appropriated in the next year. At June 30,2013, the School Board had 
entered into purchase orders and commitments as follows: 

Non Major 
General Govemmental Total 

Transfers 
In 

$ 27,178 

$ 27,178 

Transfers 
Out 

$ 
27,178 

$ 27,178 

$932,050 $ 13,110,274 $14,042,324 

NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT The School Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, 
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks 
are handled by the School Board through the purchase of various commercial insurance policies with varying 
coverage limits, deductibles, and premiums based on the type of policy. The School Board became self-insured for 
health insurance coverage in the current fiscal year. No significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage 
in the prior year occurred other than the health insurance, and no claims exceeded the School Board's insurance 
coverage for each ofthe past three years. 

The School Board is self-insured for workers' compensation. Claims are funded through operating funds ofthe 
School Board. Claims expenditures and liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the 
amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. These losses include an estimate of claims that have been incurred 
but not reported. This liability is the School Board's best estimate based on available infonnation. This liability does 
not include incremental costs, if any. 

The School Board is self-insured for health insurance coverage. Claims are funded through operating ftinds ofthe 
School Board. All known claims filed and an estimate of incurred but not reported claims based on experience of 
the School Board are made and accrued as necessary in the intemal service fund. This liability is the School 
Board's best estimate based on available infonnation. The intemal service fund for group health insurance benefits 
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incurred a net loss of $99,667,323 for the fiscal year and had a deficit in net position of $99,667,323 at June 30, 
2013. The loss is due to the increase in the OPEB liability for the year. 

Changes in the claims amount in previous fiscal years were as follows; 

Worker ' s Compensation 

Year Ended June 30. 
2011 
2012 
2013 

Beginning of 
Fiscal Year 

Liability 
$ 1,525,151 

1,462,138 
2,450,961 

Claims and 
Changes in 
Estimates 

$ 2,370,783 
3,803,894 
2,998,891 

Benefit 
Payments 

$ 2,433,796 
2,815,071 
2,998,891 

Ending of 
Fiscal Year 

Liability 
$ 1,462,138 

2,450,961 
2,450,961 

Health Insurance 

Year Ended June 30, 
2013 

Beginning of 
Fiscal Year 

Liability 

Claims and 
Changes in 
Estimates 

Benefit 
Payments 

Ending of 
Fiscal Year 

Liability 
$ 19,749,135 $ 11,285,220 $ 8,463,915 

The School Board continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting 
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any ofthe past three fiscal years. 

NOTE 13 - LITIGATION AND CLAIMS 

Litigation At June 30, 2013, the School Board is involved in various litigation. A claims liability for $700,000 
is included in claims payable in the government wide financial statements. 

Construction Projects There are constmction projects in progress at June 30, 2013. These include school 
renovations, conversions of grade levels, and wiring and security cameras. Construction in progress on these 
various projects at June 30, 2013 was $17,073,162. These projects are funded by property tax receipts. The 
expected completion date is prior to June 30,2014. The outstanding construction commitment at June 30,2013 
was $13,110,274. 

Grant Disallowances The School Board participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant programs. 
The programs are subject to compliance audits under the single audit approach. Such audits could lead to 

requests for reimbursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms ofthe grants. School 
Board management believes that the amount of disallowances, if any, which may arise from future audits will not 
be material. 

Federal Arbitrage Regulations The School Board's bonded indebtedness is subject to the Intemal Revenue 
Code's provisions applicable to arbitrage eamings. In govemment finance, these earnings result from the 
temporary investment ofthe proceeds of a government entity's tax exempt securities in materially higher yielding 
taxable securities. Under the TaxRefonn Actof 1986, interest earned on the debt proceeds in excess of interest 
expense prior to the disbursement of the proceeds must be rebated to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). 
Management believes there is no tax arbitrage liability at year end. 
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NOTE 14 - ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS FOR FRINGE BENEFITS AND SALARIES On-behalf payments for 
fringe benefits and salaries are direct payments made by an entity (the paying agent) to a third-party recipient for the 
employees of another, legally separate entity (the employer entity). GASB Statement No. 24 requires employer 
governments to recognize revenue and expenditures or expenses for these on-behalf payments. 

The State of Louisiana made pension contributions (regarding Professional Improvement Program) directly to the 
Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana on behalf of the School Board in the amount of $39,413. This amount 
was recognized as revenue and a corresponding expenditure in the applicable fund from which the salary was paid. 

NOTE 15 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards 
Codification (FASB ASC) 280-10-50-42 requires disclosure in financial statements of a situation where one entity 
provides more than 10% ofthe audited entity's revenue. The Minimum Foundation funding provided by the state to 
all public school systems in Louisiana is primarily based on October 1 student count. The state provided 
$201,890,754 to the School Board, which represents approximately 42% ofthe School Board's total revenues for the 
year. 

NOTE 16 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION The Caddo - Shreveport Sales and Use Tax Commission 
serves as the collector of sales and use taxes for the parish. The commission is comprised of four members, two each 
selected from the Caddo Parish School Board and the City of Shreveport, in accordance with the joint agreement of 
the agencies. Sales taxes of $71,286,828 were collected by the Commission and distributed to the School Board. 

NOTE 17 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Plan description - In accordance with state statutes, the School Board provides certain continuing health care and 
life insurance benefits for it retired employees on a pay-as-you-go basis. The OPEB Plan is a single employer 
defined benefit "substantive plan" as understood by past practices of the School Board and its employees. 
Substantially all ofthe School Board's employees become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement 
age while working for the School Board. These benefits and similar benefits for active employees are provided 
through a self-insured plan, whose monthly premiums are paid jointly by the employee and the School Board. 
Although no written plan currently exists or is sanctioned by law, the OPEB Plan is reported based on 
coiTununication to plan members. No separate report is issued for the OPEB Plan. 

Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of plan members and the School Board are established and may be 
amended by LRS 42:801-883. Employees do not contribute to their post employment benefits cost until they 
become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. The retirees contribute to the cost of retiree healthcare based on 
a service schedule. Contribution amounts vary depending on the number of covered parties. If the employee alone 
is covered the retiree pays 20% and the employer pays 80%. Coverage for an employee plus one additional person is 
a 25%/75% split. Three or more people covered is a 30%/70% split. All life insurance paid is 75% paid by the 
employee and 25% paid by the employer. 

The plan is cunently financed on a pay as you go basis, with the School Board contributing $27,583,643 for 
approximately 3,774 retirees. The OPEB is paid by the general fund. 
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Annual Other Post Employment Benefit Cost and Liahdit^ - The School Board's Annual Required Contribution 
(ARC) is an amount actuarially determined in accordance with GASB 45, which was implemented for the year 
ended June 30, 2008. The ARC represents alevelof funding that, ifpaid on an ongoing basis, would cover normal 
cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (UAL)over a period of thirty years. A 30 year, open 
amortization period had been used. The level dollar amortization method was used. The total ARC for fiscal year 
2013 is $114,163,067 as set forth below: 

Normal Cost 
30-year UAL amortization amount 
Annual required contribution (ARC) 

39,362,070 
74,800,997 

114,163,067 

The following table presents the School Board's OPEB Obligation for fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011: 

2013 2012 2011 
Beginning Net OPEB Obligation July 1, 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on prior year Net OPEB Obligation 

Adjustment to ARC 
Annual OPEB Cost 
Less current year retiree premiums 
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 
Ending Net OPEB Obligation at June 30, 

426,453,109 

114,163,067 
17,058.124 

131,221,191 
(27,583,643) 

103,637,548 
530.090.657 

$ 352,993,426 $ 279,223,546 

114,163,067 96,273,184 
14,119,737 7,690,590 

(22,085,847) (11,540,768) 
106,196,957 92,423,006 
(32,737,274) (18,653,126) 
73,459,683 73,769,880 

% 426,453,109 $ 352,993,426 

Utilizing the pay as you go method, the School Board contributed 21.0% ofthe annual post employment benefits 
cost for 2013, 30.8% for 2012, and 20.2% for 2011. 

Funded Status and Funding Progress - Since the plan is partially funded, $1,179,105,827 ofthe actuarial accrued 
liability of $1,195,528,516 was unfunded. Plan assets are reported at fair value. 

The funded status ofthe plan, as determined by an actuary as of July 1, 2011, was as follows: 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 
Actuarial value of plan assets 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 
Covered payroll 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 

1,195,528,516 
16,422,689 

1,179,105,827 
1.37% 

237,716,457 
496.01% 

The Schedule of Funding Progress and Schedule of Employer Contributions required supplemental information 
follows the notes. The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multi year trend infonnation about whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates ofthe value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occunence of events far into the future. Examples 
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status ofthe plan and the annual required contributions ofthe employer are subject to continual 
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 
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Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by 
the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the 
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-tenn volatility in actuarial 
accrued liabilities consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the July 1, 2011, Caddo Parish School Board actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method 
was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4% investment rate of return compounded annually and initial actual 
healthcare cost trend rate of 7.6yo scaling down to ultimate rates of 3.6% per year. Both rates included a 2.75% 
inflation assumption. The RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table projected to 2013 using scale AA was used 
in making actuarial assumptions. Withdrawal rates for employees ranged from 3% from ages 48-51 to 13% from 
ages 24-30. Disability rates ranged from .01% from ages 23-30 to .80% at age 60. Retirement rates ranged from 
1.8% at age 52 to 100% at age 70+. The actuarial value of plan assets is based on fair market value. The remaining 
amortization period at June 30, 2013, was twenty-four years. 

NOTE 18 - FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS 

Non spendable: 
Inventory 
Caddo Educational Excellence Fund 

Restricted for: 
School renovations and repairs 
Instmctional expenditures fi'om CEEF 
Child Nutrition Program 
Debt service 

Committed to: 
Unemployment compensation 
Self funded workers' compensation 
Insurance 
Data processing 
Technology enhancement 
Outstanding legal claims 
Educational Excellence Programs 

Unassigned 

Total 

General 

$ 1,491,789 
-

-
-
-
-

740,140 
250,000 

4,000,000 
1,336,098 

14,650,000 
402,274 

-
29,695,614 

$ 52,565,915 

Permanent Fund 

$ 

$ 

-CEEF 

-
18,898,164 

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

18,898,164 

Nonmajor 
Govemmental 

$ 344,577 
-

12,185,036 
301,680 

7,376,529 
11,953,725 

-
-
-
-
-
-

210,927 
-

$ 32,372,474 

Total 

$ 1,836,366 
18,898,164 

12,185,036 
301,680 

7,376,529 
11,953,725 

740,140 
250,000 

4,000,000 
1,336,098 

14,650,000 
402,274 
210,927 

29,695,614 

$ 103,836,553 

NOTE 19 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY The budgeted expenditures for the 
child nutrition fund were $21,635,478 and the actual expenditures totaled $22,229,064 which exceeded the budget 
by $593,586. 

NOTE 20 - NEW GASB STANDARDS In fiscal year 2013, the School Board implemented the following GASB 
Statements; 

Statement No. 63, "Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Defened Inflows of Resources and Net 
Position." This Statement establishes standards for reporting of deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources, and net position. 
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Statement No. 65, "Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities." This Statement amends or supersedes the 
accounting and financial guidance for certain items previously reported as assets or liabilities as well as establishes 
accounting and financial reporting standards for the financial statement of state and local govermnents. 

As a result ofthe implementation of these standards, $174,005 of bond issuance costs was written off and, the 
Statements did change the presentation ofthe School Board's financials, which consisted ofthe net assets being 
classified as net position. 
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Fiscal Year 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

Actuarial 

Valuation 

Date 

7/1/2007 

7/1/2007 

7/1/2009 

7/1/2009 

7/1/2011 

7/1/2011 

(a) 

Actuarial 

Value of 

Assets 

$ 
-
-
-

11,903,000 

16,422,689 

(b) 

Actuarial Accmed 

Liability (AAL) 

$ 1,084,063,364 

1,084,063,364 

1,034,939,049 

1,034,939,049 

1,195,528,516 

1,195,528,516 

(b-a) 

Unfunded AAL 

(UAAL) 

$ 1,084,063,364 

1,084,063,364 

1,034,939,049 

1,034,939,049 

1,183,625,516 

1,179,105,827 

(a/b) 

Funded 

Ratio 

0% 

0% 
0% 
0% 

1.00% 

1.37% 

(c) 

Covered 

Payroll 

$262,883,539 

273,586,280 

258,977,649 

270,439,595 

261,165,556 

237,716,457 

(b-a/c) 

UAAL as a 

Percentage 

of Covered 

Payroll 

412.37% 

396.24% 

399.62% 

382.69% 

45321% 

496.01% 
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Caddo Parish School Board 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Year Ended 
June 30 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

Annual 
Required 

Contribution 

$ 112,862,019 
113,256,398 
96,273,184 
96,273,184 

114,163,067 
114,163,067 

Percentage 
Contributed 

12.74% 
13.74% 
18.72% 
19.38% 
28.68% 
24.16% 
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Funds With a Legally Adopted Annual Budget 

GENERAL FUND The general fund accounts for all activities ofthe School Board except those that are accounted 
for in other funds. 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

GENERAL FUND 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 1-1 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS 

ORIGINAL FINAL 

ACTUAL 
AMOUNTS 

(Budgetary Basis) 

VARIANCE WITH 
FINAL BUDGET 

POSITIVE 
(NEGATIVE) 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 
Resources (inflows) 

Local sources: 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem 
Sales and use 

Interest earnings 
Other 

State sources: 
Equalization 
Other 

Federal sources 
Sale of capital assets 

47,484,511 S 56,018,414 S 56,018,414 S 

90,031,800 
77,000,000 

150,000 
3,795,000 

197,403,081 
2,396,700 
1,342,000 

93,670,700 
70,100,000 

150,000 
4,337,000 

193,293,057 
2,403,200 
1,300,000 

94,729,927 
71,286,828 

438,784 
7,571,472 

197,697,138 
2,120,484 
1,348,050 

85,065 

1,059,227 
1,186,828 

288,784 
3,234,472 

4,404,081 
(282,716) 

48,050 
85,065 

Amounts available for appropriations 419.603,092 421,272,371 431,296,162 10,023,791 

Charges to appropriations (outflows) 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Regular programs 
Special programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services: 
Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
School administration 
Business services 
Plant services 

Student transportation services 
Central services 
Food services 

Community service programs 
Capital Outlay 
Debt service: 
Principal retirement 
Interest and bank charges 

Total charges to appropriations 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES. ENDING 

160,788,600 
60,991,900 
19,154,982 

18,693,743 
15,730,700 
2,590,550 

23,343,600 
4,402,200 

42,628,400 
21,718,700 
5,471,800 

-
-
-

770,000 
33,803 

376,318,978 

$ 43,284,114 

166,868,400 
59,956,900 
16,694,112 

18,668,743 
15,602,800 
3,149,350 

22,911,600 
4,487,700 

41,741,900 
22,718,700 

5,936,800 

-
-
-

770,000 
33,803 

379,540,808 

$ 41,731,563 $ 

150,311,424 
52,714,817 
24,937,916 

23,376,393 
16,832,512 
4,047,312 

28,301,020 
4,192,387 

42,550,325 
21,898,576 
5,966,917 

1,893 
3,407 

2,791,545 

770,000 
33,803 

378,730,247 

16,556,976 
7,242,083 

(8,243,804) 

(4,707,650) 
(1,229,712) 

(897,962) 
(5,389,420) 

295,313 
(808,425) 
820,124 
(30,117) 

(1,893) 
(3,407) 

(2,791,545) 

-
-

810,561 

; 52,565,915 $ 10,834,352 
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Caddo Parish School Board 

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Note A - BUDGETS 

General Budget Policies The School Board follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in 
the combined financial statements: 

State statute requires budgets be adopted for the general fund and all special revenue funds. Each year prior to 
September 15, the Superintendent submits to the School Board members the proposed annual budgets for the general 
fund and all special revenue funds. Public hearings are conducted, prior to the School Board's approval, to obtain 
citizens' comments. The operating budgets include proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

Appropriations (unexpended budget balances) lapse at year-end. 

Formal budget integration (within the accounting records) is employed as a management control device. All budgets 
are controlled at the division, departmental or project level. School Board policy prescribes that the level of 
budgetary control is at the functional level for the general fund and at the fund level for the special revenue funds. 

Budget Basis of Accounting All govemmental funds' budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the School Board members. Legally, the 
Board must adopt a balanced budget; that is, total budgeted revenues and other financing sources including fund 
balance must equal or exceed total budgeted expenditures and other financing uses. State statutes require the School 
Board to amend its budgets when revenues plus projected revenues within a fund are expected to be less than 
budgeted revenues by five percent or more and/or expenditures plus projected expenditures within a fund are 
expected to exceed budgeted expenditures by five percent or more. The School Board approves budgets at the 
function level and management can transfer amounts between line items within a function. The effects of budget 
revisions to the general fund passed during the year were insignificant. 



CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Note B - Budget to GAAP Reconciliation 
Explanation of differences between budgetary inflows and outflows and GAAP revenues and expenditures 

GENERAL 
FUND 

Sources/inflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" 

from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule $ 431,296,162 

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary 
resource but is not a current year revenue for financial 
reporting purposes (56,018,414) 

The sale of capital assets is a budgetary resource 
but is not a current year revenue for financial 
reporting purposes (85,065) 

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds 375,192,683 

Charges to appropriations: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "charges to appropriations" 378,730,247 
from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - $ 378,730,247 

Governmental Funds 
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Caddo Parish School Board 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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Caddo Parish School Board 

COMBINING STATEMENTS BY FUND TYPE 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Combining Balance Sheet - By Fund Type 

June 30, 2013 

SPECIAL 
REVENUE 

DEBT 
SERVICE 

PARISHWIDE 
CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

Exhibit 2 

TOTAL 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Inventory 
Prepaid items 

10,966,704 3 
10,630,223 

180,316 
-

; 11,863,597 : 
90,128 

-
-

$ 14,325,357 $ 
180,407 
163,813 

448 

37,155,658 
10,900,758 

344,129 
448 

Total Assets 21,777,243 11,953,725 14,670.025 48,400,993 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Salaries and wages payable 
Interfund payables 
Unearned revenue 

1,125,473 
6,885,175 
5,624,091 

73,052 

2,302,143 
18,585 

3,427,616 
6,903,760 
5,624,091 

73,052 

Total Liabilities 13,707,791 2,320.728 16,028,519 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 

180,316 
7,678,209 

210,927 

-
11,953,725 

-

164,261 
12,185,036 

-

344,577 
31,816,970 

210,927 

Total Fund Balances 8,069,452 11,953.725 12,349,297 32,372,474 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES S 21,777,243 $ 11,953,725 S 14,670,025 $ 48,400,993 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

REVENUES 
Local sources: 

Ad valorem taxes 
Interest earnings 
Food services 

State sources: 
Equalization 
Other 

Federal sources 

Total Revenues 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances - By Fund Type 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

SPECIAL 
REVENUE 

DEBT 
SERVICE 

$ - S 9,749,726 
10,891 

1,878,245 

4,193,616 
1,637,383 

56,714,365 

64,434,500 

14,333 

-

-
-
-

9,764,059 

PARISHWIDE 
CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

Exhibit 3 

TOTAL 

S 19,255,954 S 29,005,680 
164,326 

-

-
355,723 

-

19,776,003 

189,550 
1,878,245 

4,193,616 
1,993,106 

56,714,365 

93,974,562 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Regular programs 
Special programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services: 
Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 

Central services 
Food services 
Community service programs 
Capital outlay 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 
Interst and bank charges 

2,769,282 
1,071,221 

21,086,556 

6,014,014 
7,985,764 
2,667,707 

141,560 
450,292 
384,984 
228,172 

22,108,037 
555,374 
273,123 

-
-

-
-
-

-
-

320,447 
25,316 

-
-
-
-
-
-

5,310,000 
4,330,726 

619,169 
-
-

-
-
-

12,300 
15,626,761 

-
-
-
-

12,714,033 

3,029,731 
-

3,388,451 
1,071,221 

21,086,556 

6,014,014 
7,985,764 
2,988,154 

179,176 
16,077,053 

384,984 
228,172 

22,108,037 
555,374 

12,987,156 

8,339,731 
4,330,726 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

65,736,086 9,986,489 

$ (1,301,586) S 

32,001,994 107,724,569 

(222,430) $ (12,225,991) S (13,750,007) 

(CONTINUED) 

86 



CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances - By Fund Type 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

SPECIAL 
REVENUE 

DEBT 
SERVICE 

PARISHWIDE 
CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

Exhibit 3 

TOTAL 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Sales of capital assets 
Issuance of debt 
Premium on bond issuance 
Payments to escrow agent 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

FUND BAUkNCES - BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

$ 

S 

27,178 
424 

-
-
-

27,602 

(1,273,984) 

9,343,436 

8,069,452 

S 

S 

-
-

15,280,000 
1,224,944 

(16,504,944) 

_ 

(222,430) 

12,176,155 

11,953,725 

$ 

S 

-
306,000 

-
-
-

306,000 

(11,919,991) 

24,269,288 

12,349,297 

$ 

S 

27,178 
306,424 

15,280,000 
1,224,944 

(16,504,944) 

333,602 

(13,416,405) 

45,788,879 

32,372,474 

(CONCLUDED) 
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Nonmaior Special Revenue Funds 

Special Education 

State Grants To provide grants to states to assist them in providing a free appropriate public education to all 
children with disabilities. 

Preschool Grants To provide grants to states to assist them in providing a free appropriate public education to 
preschool disabled children aged three through five years. 

Title II To improve the skills of teachers and the quality of instruction in mathematics and science. To increase the 
accessibility of such instruction to all students. 

Title III To ensure that limited English proficient children (LEP) and youth, including immigrant children and 
youth, attain English proficiency and meet the same challenging state academic content and student academic 
achievement standards as all children and youth are expected to meet. 

Safe and Drug Free To establish state and local programs of alcohol and drug abuse education and prevention 
coordinated with related community efforts and resources. 

TANF/JAG Provides assistance and work opportunities to needy families by granting states the federal funds and 
wide flexibility to develop and implement their own welfare programs. 

Tobacco Settlement This fund was established to account for monies received from the state Education Excellence 
Fund. The funds are to be expended in accordance with the School Board's plan submitted and approved by the 
State Department of Education. 

8(g) State Fund The 8g state fund is a program to provide enhancement to elementary, secondary and vocational 
programs funded through the State Minimum Foundation Program. 

School Improvement Competitive sub grants to local educational agencies that demonstrate the greatest need for 
the funds and the strongest commitment to use the funds to provide adequate resources in order to raise substantially 
the achievement of students in the lowest performing schools. 

Mathematics and Science To improve the academic achievement of students by enhancing content knowledge and 
teaching skills of classroom math and science teachers. 

Adult Education To improve educational opportunities for adults and to encourage the establishment of adult 
education programs that will enable all adults to acquire basic educational skills necessary to function in a literate 
society, enable adults who so desire to complete secondary school, and enable adults to benefit from job training and 
retraining programs and obtain productive employment to more fully enjoy the benefits and responsibilities of 
citizenship. Special emphasis is given to programs of instruction in computational skills and in speaking, reading, or 
writing English for those adults who are educationally disadvantaged. 

Vocational Education To make the United States more competitive in the world economy by developing more 
fully the academic and occupational skills of all segments of the population, principally through concentrating 
resources on improving educational programs leading to academic and occupational skills needed to work in a 
technologically advanced society. 

Title I To improve the teaching and learning of children who are at risk of not meeting challenging academic 
standards and who reside in areas of high concentrations of children from low-income families. 



Nonmaior Special Revenue Funds 

Homeless This fund is designed to ensure that homeless children and youth have access to a free, appropriate public 
education. 

Child Nutrition Program This program was designed to assist through cash grants and food donations in providing 
a nutritious breakfast and lunch service for school students and to encourage the domestic consumption of nutritious 
agricultural commodities. 

Behavioral Health To provide mental health services to children with a serious emotional disturbance. 

Physical Education Program To improve the quality of education, assist all students to meet challenging state 
content standards, and contribute to the achievement of elementary and secondary students. 

CEEF Operating This fund was established to account for the expenditures of the eamings from the Caddo 
Educational Excellence Permanent Fund. 

Misc. State/Federal Grants This fund is used to account for various small state and federal grants for which the 
expenditures are legally restricted to specified purposes. 

89 



CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2013 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables 

Inventory 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Salaries and wages payable 

Interfund payables 

Unearned revenue 

Total Liabilities 

SPECIAL 

EDUCATION 

$ 135,419 ; 

3,205,096 

-

3,340,515 

237,092 

1,465,453 

1,622,699 

15,271 

3,340,515 

TITLE II 

E - ; 
735,833 

-

735,833 

80,808 

468,545 

186,480 

-

735,833 

TITLE III 

$ 
9,494 

-

9,494 

1,697 

5,192 

2,605 

-

9,494 

SAFE AND 

DRUG-FREE 

$ 40,219 

375,084 

-

415,303 

25,695 

10,670 

378,938 

-

415,303 

Fund Balances: 

Nonspendable 

Restricted 

Committed 

Total Fund Balances 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 3,340,515 $ 735,833 $ 9,494 $ 415,303 
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Exhibit 4 

TOBACCO 8(g) STATE SCHOOL MATHEMATICS 
TANF/JAG SETTLEMENT FUND IMPROVEMENT & SCIENCE 

611,338 $ 321,943 $ - $ - $ 
558,936 - 188,353 291,874 125,607 

1.170,274 321,943 188,353 291,874 125,607 

318,830 111,016 
851,444 

-
105,995 

82,358 

18,738 

215,246 

57,890 

12,922 

97,967 

14,718 

1,170,274 111,016 188,353 291,874 125,607 

210,927 

210,927 

1,170,274 $ 321,943 $ 188,353 $ 291,874 $ 125,607 

(CONTINUED) 

91 



CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2013 

ADULT 
EDUCATION 

VOCATIONAL 
EDUCATION TITLE I HOMELESS 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Inventory 

$ 12,641 S 38,262 $ 1,562 $ 15,943 
85,035 128,794 4,855,067 39,305 

Total Assets 97,676 167,056 4.856,629 55,248 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Salaries and wages payable 
Interfund payables 
Unearned revenue 

1,665 
50,938 
45,073 

673,611 
975 2,003,737 

166,081 2,179,281 

2,782 
15,942 
36,524 

Total Liabilities 97,676 167,056 4,856,629 55,248 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 

Total Fund Balances 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 97,676 $ 167,056 S 4,856,629 S 55,248 
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Exhibit 4 

CHILD 

NUTRITION 

PROGRAM 

BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH 

PHYSICAL 

EDUCATION 

PROGRAM 

CEEF 

OPERATING 

MISC 

STATE/FEDERAL 

GRANTS TOTAL 

9,429,575 

31,745 

180,316 

58,122 S 301,680 S 10,966,704 

10,630,223 

180,316 

9,641,636 58,122 301,680 21,777,243 

70,463 

2,014,328 341 

57,781 

1,125,473 

6,885,175 

5,624,091 

73,052 

2,084,791 58,122 13.707,791 

180,316 
7,376,529 301,680 

180,316 

7,678,209 

210,927 

7,556,845 

$ 9,641,636 $ 58,122 $ 

301,680 

301,680 $ 

8,069,452 

S 21,777,243 

(CONCLUDED) 



CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

SPECIAL 

EDUCATION TITLE TITLE 

SAFE AND 

DRUG-FREE 

REVENUES 

Local sources; 

Interest earnings 

Food services 

State sources: 

Equalization 

Other 

Federal sources 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

Instruction: 

Regular programs 

Special programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services: 

Student services 

Instructional staff support 

General administration 

Business services 

Plant services 

Student transportation services 

Central services 

Food services 

Community service programs 

Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

156,504 

10,640,785 

10,797,289 

33,040 

1,070,331 
199,294 

4,981,283 

3,457,103 

718,163 

74,562 

29,966 

91,242 

103,156 

-
6,749 

32,400 

10,797,289 

-

-
4,065,746 

4,065,746 

2,444,089 

-
-

-
1,347,978 

273,679 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

4,065,746 

-

-
140,012 

140,012 

-
-

93,582 

-
43,618 

2,812 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

140,012 

-

-
521,372 

521,372 

-
-
-

90,627 

39,441 

38,987 

-
352,317 

-
-
-
-
-

521,372 

-

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in 

Sale of capital assets 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 
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Exhibit 5 

TOBACCO 8(g) STATE SCHOOL MATHEMATICS 

TANF/JAG SETTLEMENT FUND IMPROVEMENT & SCIENCE 

22,950 

235,723 602,607 562,220 

1,403.528 - - 1,131.575 402,245 

28,179 

28,179 

182,748 

210,927 $ 

1,639,251 602,607 562,220 1.131.575 402,245 

119,207 

1,496,845 

-
249 

-

570 

559,151 

-
14,707 

-

115,384 

446,836 

-
-
-

-

845,822 

213,107 

-
72,646 

19,080 

-

-
352,285 

30,880 

1,639,251 574,428 562.220 1.131,575 402,245 

(CONTINUED) 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

REVENUES 

Local sources; 

Interest earnings 

Food services 

State sources; 

Equalization 

Other 

Federal sources 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current; 

Instruction; 

Regular programs 

Special programs 

Other instructional programs 

Support services; 

Student services 

Instructional staff support 

General administration 

Business services 

Plant services 

Student transportation services 

Central services 

Food services 

Community service programs 

Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in 

Sale of capital assets 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 

ADULT 

EDUCATION 

VOCATIONAL 

EDUCATION TITLE I HOMELESS 

80,329 
165,296 589,826 

245,625 589,826 

240,689 

4,936 

497,268 

9,787 

82,771 

245,625 589,826 

22,287.448 

22,287.448 

169,100 

169,100 

16,486,304 

686,325 
2,564,748 
1,504,958 

66,952 
103 

289,059 

125,016 

542,384 

21,599 

22,287,448 

103,395 

-
52,004 

5,643 

-
-

1,817 

-

6,241 

-

169,100 
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Exhibit 5 

CHILD 

NUTRITION 

PROGRAM 

BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH 

PHYSICAL 

EDUCATION 

PROGRAM 

CEEF 

OPERATING 

MISC 

STATE/FEDERAL 

GRANTS TOTAL 

10,891 $ 

1.878,245 

10,891 

1,878,245 

4,193,616 

14.853.910 

20,936,662 

85,511 

85.511 

158.986 

158,986 

99.025 

99,025 

4,193,616 
1,637,383 

56,714.365 

64,434,500 

344 

-
5,928 

-
-
-

46 
1,306 

-
-

22,108,037 

-
113,403 

22,229,064 

(1,292,402) 

424 

424 

(1,291,978) 

8,848,823 

$ 7,556,845 $ 

-
-
-

42,672 
24,960 

8,516 

-
9,363 

-
-
-
-
-

85,511 

_ 

-

. 

-

-

- $ 

-
-

111,442 

-
43,340 

4,144 

-
-

60 

-
-
-
-

158,986 

_ 

-

_ 

-

-

- s 

37,363 

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

37,363 

(37,363) 

27,178 

-

27,178 

(10,185) 

311,865 

301,680 $ 

205 

890 
-

-
35,544 

2,343 

-
57,237 

2,806 

-
-
-
-

99,025 

_ 

-

_ 

-

-

-

2,769,282 

1,071,221 
21,086,556 

6,014,014 
7,985,764 
2,667,707 

141,560 
450,292 
384,984 

228,172 
22,108,037 

555,374 

273,123 

65,736,086 

(1,301,586) 

27,178 

424 

27,602 

(1,273,984) 

9,343,436 

$ 8,069,452 

(CONCLUDED) 

97 



CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-1 

*********************** SPECIAL EDUCATION ************************ 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 
State sources 
Federal sources 

156,504 $ 
10.642,237 

156,504 
10,640.785 (1,452) 

Total Revenues 10.798,741 10.797,289 (1,452) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 

Regular programs 
Special programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services: 
Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Business services 
Plant sen/ices 
Student transportation services 

Central services 
Community service programs 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

35,803 

1,476,189 

159,957 

4,647,841 

3,298,228 

718,282 

98,997 

71,259 

132,202 

152,533 

7,450 

-

10,798,741 

33,040 

1,070,331 

199,294 

4,981,283 

3,457,103 

718,163 

74,562 

29,966 

91,242 

103,156 

6,749 

32,400 

10,797,289 

2,763 

405,858 

(39,337) 

(333,442) 

(158,875) 

119 
24,435 

41,293 

40,960 

49,377 

701 
(32,400) 

1,452 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-2 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 

****************************** TITLE I * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 
Federal sources $ 6,633,690 $ 4,065,746 $ (2,567,944) 

Total Revenues 6,633,690 4,065,746 (2,567,944) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 

Regular programs 
Support services: 

Instructional staff support 
General administration 

Total Expenditures 

3,862,601 

2,322,998 

448,091 

6,633,690 

2,444,089 

1,347,978 

273,679 

4,065,746 

1,418,512 

975,020 

174,412 

2,567,944 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-3 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

*************************** TITLE I * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 191,614 $ 140,012 $ (51,602) 

Total Revenues 191,614 140,012 (51,602) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 

Other instructional programs 
Support services: 

Instructional staff support 
General administration 

128,100 

59,690 
3,824 

93,582 

43,618 
2,812 

34,518 

16,072 
1,012 

Total Expenditures 191,614 140,012 51.602 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-4 

.********************** SAFE AND DRUG-FREE *********************** 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 892,225 S 521,372 S (370,853) 

Total Revenues 892,225 521.372 (370,853) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Support services: 

Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Plant sen/ices 

185,365 

65,924 

59,882 

581,054 

90,627 

39,441 

38,987 

352,317 

94,738 

26,483 

20,895 

228,737 

Total Expenditures 892,225 521.372 370.853 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

REVENUES 
State sources 
Federal sources 

Total Revenues 

Exhibit 6-5 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * T A k i p / 1 A f ^ * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

BUDGET 

$ 235,916 
1,408,926 

1,644,842 

ACTUAL 

S 235,723 
1,403,528 

1,639,251 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ (193) 
(5,398) 

(5,591) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Regular programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services: 

Instructional staff support 

Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

119,200 
1,524,128 

1,514 

1,644,842 

119,207 
1,496,845 

249 

22,950 

1,639,251 

(7) 
27,283 

1,265 

(22,950) 

5,591 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-6 

********************* TOBACCO SETTLEMENT ******************* 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 
State sources 705,530 $ 602,607 $ (102,923) 

Total Revenues 705,530 602,607 (102,923) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Regular programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services: 
Instructional staff support 

Total Expenditures 

570 

685,390 

19,570 

705,530 

570 

559,151 

14,707 

574,428 

126,239 

4,863 

131,102 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 28,179 28,179 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 182,748 182,748 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 182,748 S 210,927 $ 28,179 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-7 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 

************************ 8(g) STATE FUND ********************** 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 
State sources 562,937 $ 562,220 (717) 

Total Revenues 562,937 562,220 (717) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 

Regular programs 
Other instructional programs 

115,385 

447,552 

115,384 
446,836 

1 
716 

Total Expenditures 562,937 562,220 717 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-8 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 

t * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT ********************** 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 1,200,000 $ 1,131,575 (68,425) 

Total Revenues 1,200,000 1,131,575 (68,425) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 

Other instructional programs 
Support services: 

Student services 
General administration 

973,832 

145,111 
81,057 

845,822 

213,107 

72,646 

128,010 

(67,996) 
8,411 

Total Expenditures 1,200,000 1,131.575 68.425 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-9 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 

******************** MATHEMATICS & SCIENCE ********************* 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 473,194 $ 402,245 $ (70,949) 

Total Revenues 473,194 402,245 (70,949) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 

Regular programs 
Support services: 

Instructional staff support 
General administration 

14,001 

428,919 
30,274 

19,080 

352,285 
30,880 

(5,079) 

76,634 
(606) 

Total Expenditures 473,194 402,245 70,949 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-10 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 

r* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * ADULT EDUCATION ************************* 

REVENUES 
State sources 
Federal sources 

Total Revenues 

$ 

BUDGET 

80,331 

173,972 

254,303 

S 

ACTUAL 

80,329 

165,296 

245,625 

S 

VARIANCE 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

(2) 
(8,676) 

(8,678) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 

Other instructional programs 
Support services: 

General administration 

239,885 

14.418 

240,689 

4,936 

(804) 

9,482 

Total Expenditures 254,303 245,625 8,678 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-11 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 

• * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * ' VOCATIONAL EDUCATION ********************* 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 639,777 $ 589,826 $ (49,951; 

Total Revenues 639,777 589,826 (49,951) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 

Other instructional programs 
Support services: 

Instructional staff support 

Capital outlay 

47,218 

9,788 

82,771 

497,268 

9,787 

82,771 

49,950 

1 
-

Total Expenditures 639,777 589.826 49,951 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-12 

************************* TITLE I ************************** 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 
Federal sources $ 25,741,937 $ 22,287,448 $ (3,454,489) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Other instructional programs 

Support services: 
Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Business services 
Plant sen/ices 

Student transportation services 
Central services 
Community service programs 

Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

19,244,095 

738,642 

2,798,977 

1,736,783 

67,846 

3,982 

399,024 

121,100 

631,488 

-

25,741,937 

16,486,304 

686,325 

2,564,748 

1,504,958 

66,952 

103 
289,059 

125,016 

542,384 

21,599 

22,287,448 

2,757,791 

52,317 

234,229 

231,825 

894 
3,879 

109,965 

(3,916) 

89,104 

(21,599) 

3,454,489 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-13 

*********************** HOMELESS ************************ 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 245,075 $ 169,100 $ (75,975) 

Total Revenues 245,075 169,100 (75,975) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 

Other instructional programs 
Support services: 

Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Student transportation sen/ices 

Community service programs 

104,025 103,395 630 

81,786 
10,522 
9,000 

39,742 

52,004 
5,643 
1,817 
6,241 

29,782 
4,879 
7,183 

33,501 

Total Expenditures 245,075 169,100 75,975 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-14 

******************* CHILD NUTRITION PROGRAM ******************* 

REVENUES 
Local sources: 

Interest earnings 
Food services 

State sources; 
Equalization 

Federal sources 

$ 

BUDGET 

10,891 
2,392,973 

4,193,616 
15,150,006 

S 

ACTUAL 

10,891 
1,878,245 

4,193,616 
14,853,910 

S 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

(514,728) 

-
(296,096) 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Regular programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services: 
Business services 
Plant sen/ices 

Food services 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Sale of capital assets 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

21,747,486 20,936,662 (810,824) 

-
-

-
-

21,522,075 
113,403 

344 
5,928 

46 
1,306 

22,108,037 
113,403 

(344) 
(5,928) 

(46) 
(1,306) 

(585,962) 
-

21,635,478 

112,008 

. 

112,008 

8,848,823 

S 8,960,831 

22,229,064 

(1,292,402) 

424 

424 

(1,291,978) 

8,848,823 

S 7,556,845 

(593,586) 

(1,404,410) 

424 

424 

(1,403,986) 

S (1,403,986) 
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-15 

*********************** BEHAVIORAL HEALTH ***********************! 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 135,479 $ 85,511 $ (49,968) 

Total Revenues 135,479 85,511 (49,968) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Support services: 

Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Plant sen/ices 

90,561 
22,504 

6,051 
16,363 

42,672 
24,960 

8,516 
9,363 

47,889 
(2,456) 
(2,465) 
7,000 

Total Expenditures 135,479 85.511 49,968 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 
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Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
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Exhibit 6-16 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 

*************** PHYSICAL EDUCATION PROGRAM * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * • ( 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 

Federal sources 168,741 S 158,986 $ (9,755) 

Total Revenues 168,741 158,986 (9,755) 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

Instruction: 

Other instructional programs 

Support services: 

Instructional staff support 

General administration 

Student transportation services 

118,119 111,442 

45,560 

5,062 

-

43,340 

4,144 

60 

6,677 

2,220 

918 

(60) 

Total Expenditures 168,741 158,986 9,755 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-17 

********************* CEEF OPERATING ********************** 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Regular programs 314,027 $ 37,363 S 276,664 

Total Expenditures 314,027 37,363 276,664 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES (314,027) (37,363) 276,664 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in 27,178 27.178 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 27,178 27,178 

Net Change in Fund Balances (286,849) (10,185) 276,664 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 311,865 311,865 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 25,016 S 301,680 $ 276,664 
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Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Exhibit 6-18 

I f * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * MISC STATE/FEDERAL GRANTS ****************** 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 468,506 $ 99,025 $ (369,481) 

Total Revenues 468,506 99,025 (369,481) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction: 

Regular programs 
Special programs 

Support services: 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Plant sen/ices 
Student transportation services 

Total Expenditures 

-
2,498 

33,791 

8,575 

423,642 

-

468,506 

205 
890 

35,544 

2,343 

57,237 

2,806 

99,025 

(205) 

1,608 

(1,753) 

6,232 

366,405 

(2,806) 

369,481 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 

OVER (Under) EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 
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Agency Funds 

SCHOOL ACTIVITIES FUND The activities ofthe various individual school accounts are accounted for in the 
school activities agency fund. While the accounts are under the supervision ofthe School Board, they belong to the 
individual schools or their student bodies and are not available for use by the School Board. 

CENTRAL OFFICE CONCESSION FUND This fund accounts for those monies collected by School Board 
employees working in the Central Office Coffee Shop for the purposes of replenishing items sold and maintenance 
of coffee shop equipment. 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits due others 

Total liabilities 

Balance, 
July 1,2012 

S 4,145,485 
526,920 

4,672,405 

4,672,405 

4,672,405 

Additions Deductions 

******SQHOOL ACTIVITIES FUND****** 

$ 11,305,229 $ 10,966,657 
1,525 6,300 

11,306,754 

11,306,754 

11,306,754 

10,972,957 

10,972,957 

10,972,957 

Exhibit 7 

Balance, 
June 30, 2013 

$ 4,484,057 
522,145 

5,006,202 

5,006,202 

5,006,202 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

****CENTRAL OFFICE CONCESSION FUND**** 

695 24,319 23,789 1,225 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits due others 

Total liabilities 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits due others 

Total liabilities $ 

695 

695 

695 

4,146,180 
526,920 

4,673,100 

4,673,100 

4,673,100 

24,319 

24,319 

24,319 

23,789 

23,789 

23,789 

*********^l^j^ AGENCY FUNDS********* 

11,329,548 10,990,446 
1,525 6,300 

11,331,073 

11,331,073 

S 11,331,073 S 

10,996,746 

10,996,746 

10,996,746 S 

1,225 

1,225 

1,225 

4,485,282 
522,145 

5,007,427 

5,007,427 

5,007,427 
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Caddo Parish School Board 

General Exhibit 8 

Schedule of Compensation Paid Board Members 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

The schedule of compensation paid to the School Board members is presented in compliance with House Concurrent 
Resolution No. 54 ofthe 1979 Session ofthe Louisiana Legislature. Compensation of the School Board members is 
included in the general administrative expenditures ofthe General Fund and represents the amounts paid for the year 
ended June 30, 2013, and the office held at that time. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 17:56, the 
School Board members have elected the monthly payment method of compensation. Under this method, each 
member ofthe School Board receives $800 per month, the vice presidents receive $850 per month, and the president 
receives $900 per month for perfomiing the duties of office. The extra $50 and $100 per month for the vice 
presidents and the president is paid to each only in the event each attends the monthly executive committee meeting. 

Board Member Amount 

Larry Ramsey, President $ 10,500 

Carl Pierson, First Vice President 9,900 

Bonita Crawford, Second Vice President 9,850 

Ginger Armstrong 9,600 

Charlotte Crawley 9,600 

Jasmine Green 9,600 

Curtis Hooks 9,600 

Lillian Priest 9,600 

Barry Rachal 9,600 

Steve Riall 10,200 

Mary Trammel 9,600 

Dottie Bell 9.900 

Total S117.55Q 
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And Other Information 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor^s Report 

Board Members 
Caddo Parish School Board 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the govermnental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Caddo Parish School Board as of and for the year ended June 30,2013, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School Board's basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2013. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Inplarming andperforming our audit ofthe financial statements, we considered the School Board's intemal control 
over fmancial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness ofthe School Board's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness ofthe School Board's internal control. 

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, we identified a certain deficiency in 
intemal control that we consider to be a material weakness. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School Board's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described 
in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2013-0001 to be a material weakness. 

Member: American Institute of Certified Pubfic Accountants. Society of Louisiana Certified Public Accountants, 
American lustilute of Certified Public Accountants Division for CPA Firms. 

Equal Opportunity Employer 

http://www.allengreencpa.com


A sigiiificant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School Board's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

The School Board's Response to Findings 

The School Board's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Corrective 
Action Plan for Cuirent Year Findings and Questioned Costs. The School Board's response was not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe School Board's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the School Board's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is 
not suitable for any other purpose. Although the intended use of these reports may be limited, under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

ALLEN, GREEN & WILLIAMSON, LLP 

Mom-oe, Louisiana 
December 19,2013 
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Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program; 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

Independent Auditor^s Report 

Board Members 
Caddo Parish School Board 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Caddo Parish School Board's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement thcd couldhave a direct and material effect on each ofthe School 
Board's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. The School Board's major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditor's results section ofthe accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs. 

Management 's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each ofthe School Board's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe 
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
about the School Board's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination ofthe School Board's compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the School Board complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2013. 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance, which is required to be reported in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs as item 2013-0002. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to 
this matter. 

The School Board's response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings. The School Board's response was not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the School Board's intemal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over comphance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe School Board's intemal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A 
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
intemal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than 
a material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with govemance. 

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, we identified a certain deficiency in intemal control over compliance, 
as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2013-0002 that we consider to 
be a significant deficiency. 

The School Board's response to the intemal control over compliance finding identified in our audit is described in 
the accompanying Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Findings and Questioned Costs. The School Board's 
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on the response. 



The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Although the intended use of these reports may be 
limited, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Office ofthe Louisiana Legislative 
Auditor as a public document. 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information ofthe School Board, as of and for the year ended June 30,2013 and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School Board's basic financial statements. We issued our 
report thereon dated December 19, 2013, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our 
audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part ofthe basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule 
of expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as 
a whole. 

ALLEN, GREEN & WILLIAMSON, LLP 

Mom^oe, Louisiana 
December 19,2013 



Caddo Parish School Board 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME 
United States Depaitment of Agriculture 

Child Nutrition Cluster 
Cash Assistance 

Passed tluough Ender York, Inc. of Hemdoii, Virginia: 

Food Distribution (Cash in lieu of commodities) 
Passed tluough Louisiana Department of Education: 

School Breakfast Progiam 
National School Limch Program 

Simimer Food Program for Children 
Non-cash Assistance - Commodities 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Agriculture 
and Forestry; 

Food Distribution Program (Commodities) 

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 

Passed tluough Louisiana Depaitment of Education: 

Fruits and Vegatables 

Total United States Department of Agriculture 

United States Department of Education 

Passed tluough Louisiana Department of Education: 

Adult Education - State-Administered 

Basic Grant Progiam 

Title I, Part A Cluster 

Giants to Local Educational Agencies 

Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Recoveiy Act 

Total Title I, Part A Cluster 

Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 

Giants to States (IDEA Part B) 

Preschool Grants (IDEA Preschool) 

Total Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 

Special Education Grants to States High Risk Pool 

Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States 

Improving Teacher Quality (Title II) 

Education foi Homeless Childien & Youth 

CFDA 
Number 

10.555 

10.555 

10.582 

84.002 

84.010 

84.389 

Grantor No. 

N/A 

10.553 

10.555 

10.559 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

V002A1000018 

28-11-TA-09 

28-13-T1-09 

28-12-TA-09 

28-09-T1-09 

Pass-Through 
Expenditures 

1,080,031 

3,355,553 

10,362,914 
38,756 

1,301 

454,876 

21,432,965 

377,045 

22,562 

14.838,555 

15,355 

14,853,910 

165,296 

84.027 

84.173 

84.323 

84.048 

84.367 

84.196 

28-12-JP-09 

28-13-B1-09 

28-11-S7-09 

28-12-SE-09 

28-14-B1-09 

28-13-P1-09 

28-12-P3-09 

28-12-02-09 
28-13-02-09 

28-13-50-09 

28-14-50-09 

28-12-H1-09 

28-13-H1-09 

68,742 

10,335,250 

38,769 

2,268 

55 
287,744 

32,982 
556,844 

4,051,632 

14,114 

6,723 

77,304 

22,287,448 

10,732,828 

17,736 

589,826 

4,065,746 

84,027 

(Continued) 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME 

English Language Acquisition Grant (Title IH) 

Title IV: 

Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities National Progiam 

School Improvement Cluster: 

School Improvement 
School Improvement Recovery Act 

Math & Science Partnerships 

Fund for Ihe Iii5)iovement of Education 

Education Technology State Grant - Recovery Act 

Total United States Department of Education 

United States Depaitment of Health and Human Services 

Direct Program: 

Coordinated School Health 

Passed tluough Louisiana Department of Education: 

Tert^oiary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 

Safe and Healthy Schools 
Total United States Department of Health and Human Services 

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Direct Program: 

Continuum of Care - Homeless Education Enhancement Program 

United States Environmental Protection Agency 

Direct Program: 

LA Clean Diesel Environmental Quality Grant 

United States Department of Defense 

Direct Piograms: 

Depaitment ofthe Army: ROTC 

Flood Control 

Total United States Department of Defense 

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS 

CFDA 
Number 
84.365 

84.184 

84.377 
84.388 

84.366 

84.215 

84.386 

93.955 

93.558 

93.938 

Grantor No. 
28-13-60-09 

28-11-S3-09 

Q184EI00275 
28-11-S1-09 
28-11-S9-09 
28-1 l-SF-09 
28-11-S4-09 

28-10-TC-09 
28-09-TG-09 

28-1 l-MP-09 

28-12-MP-09 

Q215F090374 

28-09-59-09 

56166 
700597 

712230 

N/A 
28-13-36-09 
28-13-JS-09 

28-12-SH-09 

"$ 138,612 

1,400 

57,237 
147,000 
162,890 
81,191 
95,788 

175,168 
956,407 

68,329 

333,916 

22,289 

60,546 

2,676 

8,018 
1,276,054 

50,714 

Pass-Through 
Expendituies 

140,012 

544,106 

1,131,575 

402,245 

158,986 

213 

40,320,044 

85,511 

1,334,786 

34,503 
1,454,800 

14.235 LA0036B6H020802 

66.040 N/A 

I2.Ukn N/A 

12.106 N/A 

85,073 

2,806 

1,339,757 

6,025 

1,345,782 

$58,062,415 

(Concluded) 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

NOTE 1 - GENERAL The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of 
all federal awards programs ofthe Caddo Parish School Board, Shreveport, Louisiana. The Caddo Parish 
School Board (the "School Board") reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the School Board's basic financial 
statements. Federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards passed through 
other govemment agencies, are included on the schedule. 

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is 
presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the School Board's basic 
financial statements. 

NOTE 3 - RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Federal awards revenues are reported in 
the School Board's basic fmancial statements as follows: 

Federal Sources 
General $ 1,348,050 
Other Govemmental: 

Special Education 10,640,785 
Title II 4,065,746 
Title III 140,012 
Safe and Drug Free 521,372 
TANF/JAG 1,403,528 
School Improvement 1,131,575 
Mathniatics & Science 402,245 
Adult Education 165,296 
Vocational Education 589,826 
Title I 22,287,448 
Homeless 169,100 
Child Nutrition Fund 14,853,910 
Behavioral Health 85,511 
Physical Education Program 158,986 
Misc. State/Federal Grants 99,025 

Total $ 58,062,415 

NOTE 4 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS Amounts reported in the accompanying 
schedule agree with the amounts reported in the related federal financial reports except for changes made to reflect 
amounts in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

NOTE 5 - MATCHING REVENUES For those funds that have matching revenues and state funding, federal 
expenditures were determined by deducting matching revenues from total expenditures. 

NOTE 6 - NONCASH PROGRAMS The commodities received, which are noncash revenues, are valued using 
prices provided by the United States Department of Agriculture. 

12 



Caddo Parish School Board 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

PART I - Summary ofthe Auditor's Results 

Financial Statement Audit 

i. The type of audit report issued was umnodified. 

ii. There was one significant deficiency required to be disclosed by Govemment Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. The significant deficiency was considered to be a 
material weakness. 

iii. There were no instances of non-compliance disclosed which would be considered material to the 
financial statements, as defined by Government Auditing Standards. 

Audit of Federal Awards 

iv. There was one significant deficiency required to be disclosed by OMB Circular A-133. The significant 
deficiency was not considered to be a material weakness. 

V. The type of report the auditor issued on compliance of major federal awards was unmodified. 

vi. The audit disclosed one audit findings which the auditor is required to report under OMB Circular 
A-133, Section .510(a). 

vii. The major federal awards are: 

School Improvement Cluster: 
School Improvement CFDA # 84.377 
School Improvement, Recovery Act CFDA # 84.388 

Title I, Part A Cluster: 
Grants to Local Educational Agencies CFDA # 84.010 
Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Recovery Act CFDA # 84.389 

Math & Science Partnerships CFDA # 84.366 

viii. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as defined in OMB 
Circular A-133, Section .520(b) was $1,741,872. 

ix. The auditee qualifies as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133, Section .530. 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Part n - Findings related to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards generally accepted in the United States of America: 

Reference # and title: 2013-001 Controls Over Payroll 

Entity-wide or program/department specific: This finding is entity-wide. 

Criteria or specific requirement: Strong intemal controls over payroll disbursements require that payroll and 
personnel related information be properly safeguarded to ensure no unauthorized changes are made to payroll related 
information. Payroll disbursements should be calculated based on Board approved salary schedules, any additional 
pay amounts should be properly approved, and employees should be terminated in the system once the employee 
resigns or is terminated. 

Condition found: 

When reviewing the system access regarding the payroll and personnel function, it was noted there are insufficient 
controls in place over employee information. The following was noted: 

• There were multiple employees noted across various departments who had access to modify employee 
payroll and/or personnel information who should not have been granted access. Although some of these 
employees needed access at some points to assist with payroll related items, the access should have been 
properly restricted to only allowing viewing and not editing employee information. 

• It was noted that although the School Board has separate payroll and human resource departments, all 
payroll and human resource related items are comingled within the new payroll system, and the access has 
not been restricted between these departments. Therefore, payroll employees are able to make changes to 
human resource related items and human resource employees are able to make changes to payroll related 
items. 

• The IT department provided an Employee Master Log Report which details the employees who access 
master file information and the changes that are made to the file. When reviewing a listing of employees 
within the human resource department and the payroll department and a listing of key employees within the 
finance and accounting department, it was noted that several employees were able to access their employee 
master file and made changes such as telephone number or address. Although the changes made were not 
considered to be significant changes that would affect the amount paid to the employee, these employees 
should not be able to access and make changes to their employee master file information. 

Problems were also noted with sick leave balances at year end. A sample of employee sick leave balances was 
selected from the compensated absences report as of June 30 to test for accuracy ofthe balances. Ofthe 25 tested, 
13 were noted to have variances. These variances ranged from $21 to $362. In each instance, it was noted that the 
ending balance per the compensated absences report was less than the balance that was manually calculated. 

The payroll department took an entire payroll's worth of checks and direct deposit forms to the IT department to be 
shred because that department is responsible for destroying checks. The IT Systems Design Manager, the person 
responsible for logging destroyed checks, was not notified when the checks and direct deposit forms were sent to 
the IT department. Some ofthe checks were shred before the IT Systems Design Manager was notified and there is 
no record ofthe check numbers. 

During audit fieldwork, it was noted that the School Board's intemal audit department had performed an audit ofthe 
payroll department during the year. Based on a review of the intemal audit report for the audit of the payroll 
department, additional audit testing was performed as described below. 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Part n - Findings related to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards generally accepted in the United States of America: 

A sample of 15 new hires was selected from a listing of all new hires for the School Board for the year. The 
employee master file log was reviewed for each new hire tested to ensure that the employee was set up by 
the human resources department and not by the payroll department. There was one exception noted where a 
newly hired substitute was initially set up by the human resources department, however the payroll 
department made changes to the new hires' employee master file information instead of submitting the 
request for the change to the human resources department. 

The internal audit report noted several pay related contributions that are paid to various employees during 
the year. If an employee is to be paid an amount in excess ofthe pay assignment approved by the Board 
(i.e. additional duties, to freeze pay, etc.), a pay related contribution is added to the employee's record to 
pay this additional amount. After a review of a sample ofthe pay related contributions paid for the year, it 
was noted that there are no procedures in place for proper approval for these amounts. The human resource 
department has full authority to add these pay related contributions as they deem necessary. There is no 
formal approval noted in the employee's personnel file beyond a note explaining the reason for the 
contribution, which is signed by the human resource employee who makes the determination. Also, it was 
noted that the human resources department was unable to provide proof of approval by the Board or any 
administrative personnel for the pay related contributions paid. 

The intemal audit report noted multiple instances where employees who were terminated or resigned during 
the year continued to receive payroll checks after the end of employment. Therefore, a sample of 40 
employees were selected for testing who had their human resource status changed from active to either a 
leave status or an inactive status during the audit period. 

• There were three instances noted where an insurance employee changed the human resources status 
of an employee from active to inactive; this department should not be making any changes to the 
human resource status of employees. It was also noted that this insurance employee mistakenly 
inactivated one employee's human resource status during the audit period. 

• There were twelve exceptions noted where a substitute was marked inactive on their human 
resources status, but was never marked inactive on their payroll status. Therefore, there is a risk 
that terminated substitutes could continue to receive checks after the end of employment. 

• There was one exception noted where an employee was marked inactive by human resources, but 
was never marked inactive by payroll; no additional amounts appear to be paid to this employee. 

• There was one instance noted where payroll employees were noted as making changes to the human 
resource status of an employee; these changes should only be made by the human resources 
department. 

• There was one exception noted where an employee who resigned continued to have payroll checks 
issued to them after all pay outs were made. Although the payroll department caught the 
disbursements before they were sent to the employee and reversed these disbursements, the 
employee was not properly inactivated on both the payroll side and also the human resources side 
after their date of resignation to avoid overpayment. 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Part n - Findings related to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards generally accepted in the United States of America: 

Possible asserted effect (cause and effect): 

Cause: The new payroll software was implemented during the audit period. This software was run parallel to 
the old payroll software for multiple pay periods. When comparing the parallel payroll runs, staff noted that the 
new software was not working correctly with regard to posting and calculating. A decision was made to fully 
implement the new payroll software even though these software problems were not corrected yet by the software 
vendor. 

Effect: Due to the problems with limiting access to employee master file information and payroll information, 
separation of duties controls over payroll expenditures are very weak. This is especially conceming as 
approximately 80% ofthe School Board's budget is payroll and benefit related expenditures. Problems have 
also been noted with reports generated by the payroll system. There are numerous instances where the reports 
generated from payroll do not agree to the posting in the general ledger for payroll related accruals. The 
problems with payroll have caused more work for the payroll department which is an inefficient use of 
resources. 

Recommendation to prevent future occurrences: 

Access to make changes to employee master files and payroll information should be limited to only those employees 
needing the access. Payroll employees should not have access to employee master files. The decision of access 
rights should be made by management ofthe School Board to ensure proper segregation of duties. 

The payroll process should be automated as much as possible to reduce the workload in the payroll department. The 
School Board should consider paying all employees either bimonthly or biweekly. This would reduce the number 
of payroll runs for the year. Consideration should also be given to eliminating the paper checks by requiring either 
direct deposit or a payroll card for all employees. 

Approval procedures should be established with the assistance of legal counsel for pay related contributions. 

View of Responsible Official: The district agrees that access security is very important to this and all systems. 
This is an issue that staff has had, dating back to system testing. We will continue to work with the system 
developer and our Information Technology Department to make improvements in this area. We agree that the 
system as it currently exists does cause more work for Payroll and other departmental employees and is not an 
efficient use of resources. 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Part HI - Findings and questioned costs for federal awards which are required to be reported under 
OMB Circular A-133 Section .510(a): 

Reference # and title: 2013-002 Title 1 Targeting 

Entity-Wide or program /department specific: 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME 
United States Department of Education 
Passed through La. Department of Education 

Title I, Part A Cluster 
Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Recovery Act 

School Improvement Cluster 
School Improvement 
School Improvement Recovery Act 

Math and Science Partnerships 

CFDA NO. AWARD YEAR 

84.010 
84.389 

84.377 
84.388 

2013 
2009 

2010 
2009 

84.366 2012 

Criteria or specific requirement: Federal guidelines require that the School Board determine which schools are 
eligible to participate in Title IPart A based on poverty measures forchildrenbetweentheagesof 5 to 17. In order 
to complete this determination, preschool children should be removed from the enrollment numbers. 

Condifion found: The Title I personnel did not subtract out preschool children from the em-oUment data in 
determining which schools are eligible to participate. Although there were no changes in total eligibility ofthe 
schools, it was noted that the allocations for all ofthe schools receiving benefits changed as well as the ranking of 
schools. 

Possible asserted effect (cause and effect): 

Cause: The enrollment numbers are prepopulated by the State Department of Education and included preschool 
children. The numbers were not reviewed before the targeting was submitted. 

Effect: The enrollment numbers used for targeting included preschool children who were under the age of 5. 

Recommendation to prevent future occurrences: A set of procedures and controls should be established by the 
Title I department with proper reviews to ensure that the report is completed properly before it is submitted. 

View of Responsible Official: Prior to the 2011-2012 school year, the PreK students were excluded when 
computing free/reduced percentages for the egrant. When the state pre-populated the targeting pages, it was 
assumed that the PreK students were backed out. State personnel did not tell us that Prek students would be included 
and we would have to back them out. Subsequently when percentages were computed, they were inaccurate, which 
was unknown to the district. The school year 2013-14 calculations were done the same way. 
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Caddo Parish School Board 

OTHER INFORMATION 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Summary Status of Prior Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs 

June 30, 2013 

Reference # and fitle: 12-Fl Controls Over Inventories 

Entity-Wide or program /department specific: This finding is entity-wide. 

Condition: In reviewing inventory accounts it was noted that inventories are not being adequately tracked or 
properly adjusted. Not all inventories had physical inventory performed. The Food Service supplies inventory did 
not have a physical inventory performed at year-end. There were physical inventories performed for the rest ofthe 
inventories at year-end and several variances between the counts and the system totals were noted. However, these 
variances were never investigated and resolved. The totals from the physical counts were not entered into the 
inventory system; therefore, the accounting department never received complete and accurate reports to adjust the 
balances on the general ledger. Due to this, accounting was not able to record adjustments to the inventories to 
reflect the actual balances at year-end. 

Corrective action taken: Finance discussed this with the Directors of Purchasing and Child Nutrition. Physical 
inventories were taken at year end. 

Reference # and title: 12-F2 Procurement, Suspension and Debarment 

Entity-Wide or program /department specific: 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME CFDA NO. AWARD YEAR 
United States Department of Education 
Passed through La. Department of Education 

Fund for the Improvement of Education 84.215 2012 
Safe and Drug Free Schools and 
Communities National Program 84.184 2012 

Math and Science Partnerships 84.366 2012 

Condition: Federal regulation 2 CFR part 180 requires that entities receiving federal funds must verify that the 
entity in which it expects to spend $25,000 or more for goods and services is not suspended or debarred or otherwise 
excluded from receiving federal funds. The School Board obtains certifications from vendors when items are bid 
that the vendor is not suspended or debarred from participating in federal contracts. There are no procedures for 
suspension and debarment for purchases that are not bid. 

Corrective action taken: The District has added a debarment clause to all purchase orders. We had previously 
added it to all RFP/REQs. This will ensure that all federal fund purchases are included both through the bid process 
and those that are not subject to a formal bid. 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs 

For Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Reference # and fitle: 2013-001 Controls Over Payroll 

Entity-wide or program/department specific: This finding is entity-wide. 

Condition: When reviewing the system access regarding the payroll and persormel function, it was noted there are 
insufficient controls in place over employee information. The following was noted: 

• There were multiple employees noted across various departments who had access to modify employee 
payroll and/or personnel information who should not have been granted access. Although some of these 
employees needed access at some points to assist with payroll related items, the access should have been 
properly restricted to only allowing viewing and not editing employee information. 

• It was noted that although the School Board has separate payroll and human resource departments, all 
payroll and human resource related items are comingled within the new payroll system, and the access has 
not been restricted between these departments. Therefore, payroll employees are able to make changes to 
human resource related items and human resource employees are able to make changes to payroll related 
items. 

• The IT department provided an Employee Master Log Report which details the employees who access 
master file information and the changes that are made to the file. When reviewing a listing of employees 
within the human resource department and the payroll department and a listing of key employees within the 
finance and accounting department, it was noted that several employees were able to access their employee 
master file and made changes such as telephone number or address. Although the changes made were not 
considered to be significant changes that would affect the amount paid to the employee, these employees 
should not be able to access and make changes to their employee master file information. 

Problems were also noted with sick leave balances at year end. A sample of employee sick leave balances was 
selected from the compensated absences report as of June 30 to test for accuracy ofthe balances. Ofthe 25 tested, 
13 were noted to have variances. These variances ranged from $21 to $362. In each instance, it was noted that the 
ending balance per the compensated absences report was less than the balance that was manually calculated. 

The payroll department took an entire payroll's worth of checks and direct deposit forms to the IT department to be 
shred because that department is responsible for destroying checks. The IT Systems Design Manager, the person 
responsible for logging destroyed checks, was not notified when the checks and direct deposit forms were sent to 
the IT department. Some ofthe checks were shred before the IT Systems Design Manager was notified and there is 
no record ofthe check numbers. 

During audit fieldwork, it was noted that the School Board's intemal audit department had performed an audit ofthe 
payroll department during the year. Based on a review of the intemal audit report for the audit of the payroll 
department, additional audit testing was performed as described below. 

A sample of 15 new hires was selected from a listing of all new hires for the School Board for the year. The 
employee master file log was reviewed for each new hire tested to ensure that the employee was set up by 
the human resources department and not by the payroll department. There was one exception noted where a 
newly hired substitute was initially set up by the human resources department, however the payroll 
department made changes to the new hires' employee master file information instead of submitting the 
request for the change to the human resources department. 

The internal audit report noted several pay related contributions that are paid to various employees during 
the year. If an employee is to be paid an amount in excess ofthe pay assignment approved by the Board 
(i.e. additional duties, to freeze pay, etc.), a pay related contribution is added to the employee's record to 
pay this additional amount. After a review of a sample ofthe pay related contributions paid for the year, it 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs 

For Year Ended June 30, 2013 

was noted that there are no procedures in place for proper approval for these amounts. The human resource 
department has full authority to add these pay related contributions as they deem necessary. There is no 
formal approval noted in the employee's personnel file beyond a note explaining the reason for the 
contribution, which is signed by the human resource employee who makes the determination. Also, it was 
noted that the human resources department was unable to provide proof of approval by the Board or any 
administrative personnel for the pay related contributions paid. 

The intemal audit report noted multiple instances where employees who were terminated or resigned during 
the year continued to receive payroll checks after the end of employment. Therefore, a sample of 40 
employees were selected for testing who had their human resource status changed from active to either a 
leave status or an inactive status during the audit period. 

• There were three instances noted where an insurance employee changed the human resources status 
of an employee from active to inactive; this department should not be making any changes to the 
human resource status of employees. It was also noted that this insurance employee mistakenly 
inactivated one employee's human resource status during the audit period. 

• There were twelve exceptions noted where a substitute was marked inactive on their human 
resources status, but was never marked inactive on their payroll status. Therefore, there is a risk 
that terminated substitutes could continue to receive checks after the end of employment. 

• There was one exception noted where an employee was marked inactive by human resources, but 
was never marked inactive by payroll; no additional amounts appear to be paid to this employee. 

• There was one instance noted where payroll employees were noted as making changes to the human 
resource status of an employee; these changes should only be made by the human resources 
department. 

• There was one exception noted where an employee who resigned continued to have payroll checks 
issued to them after all pay outs were made. Although the payroll department caught the 
disbursements before they were sent to the employee and reversed these disbursements, the 
employee was not properly inactivated on both the payroll side and also the human resources side 
after their date of resignation to avoid overpayment. 

Corrective action planned: Automation and improved efficiency was a key reason for our initial search for a new 
HR/PayroU System. We will continue to work with our board and employees in this respect. We agree with the 
recommendation to require direct deposit or a payroll card, and will work with our board in an effort to implement 
this. 

Person responsible for the above corrective actions: 
James G. Lee, Chief Financial Officer Telephone: 318-603-6300 
Caddo Parish School Board Fax: 318-603-6274 
1961 Midway 
Shreveport, LA 71108 

Anticipated completion date: June 30, 2014 
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Caddo Parish School Board 
Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs 

For Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Reference # and fitle: 2013-002 Title 1 Targeting 

Entity-Wide or program /department specific: 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR,/PROGRAM NAME 
United States Department of Education 
Passed through La. Department of Education 

Title I, Part A Cluster 
Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Recovery Act 

School Improvement Cluster 
School Improvement 
School Improvement Recovery Act 

CFDA NO. AWARD YEAR 

84.010 
84.389 

84.377 
84.388 

2013 
2009 

2010 
2009 

Math and Science Partnerships 84.366 2012 

Condition: Federal guidelines require that the School Board determine which schools are eligible to participate in 
Title I Part A based on poverty measures for children between the ages of 5 to 17. In order to complete this 
determination, preschool children should be removed from the enrollment numbers. 

The Title I personnel did not subtract out preschool children from the enrollment data in determining which schools 
are eligible to participate. Although there were no changes in total eligibility ofthe schools, it was noted that the 
allocations for all ofthe schools receiving benefits changed as well as the ranking of schools. 

Corrective action planned: Beginning with the 2014-15 school year, computation of free/reduced percentages will 
be computed by program staff to ensure accuracy. It should be noted that when the state monitors reviewed data for 
2013-14, nothing was mentioned with this respect. 

Person responsible for the above corrective actions: 
Janis Parker, Director of Title I Telephone: 318-603-6300 
Caddo Parish School Board Fax: 318-603-6274 
1961 Midway 
Shreveport, LA 71108 

Anticipated completion date: 2014-2015 school year. 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

Board Members 
Caddo Parish School Board 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

We have performed the procedures included in the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide and enumerated below, 
which were agreed to by the management of Caddo Parish School Board, Shreveport, Louisiana, and the Legislative 
Auditor, State of Louisiana, solely to assist users in evaluating management's assertions about the performance and 
statistical data accompanying the annual financial statements of the School Board and to determine whether the 
specified schedules are free of obvious errors and omissions as provided by the Board of Elementary and Secondary 
Education (BESE). This agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed in accordance with attestation 
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility ofthe specified 
users ofthe reports. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency ofthe procedures described 
below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

Our procedures and findings relate to the accompanying schedules of supplemental information and are as follows: 

General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue Sources {Schedule 1) 

1. We selected a random sample of 25 transactions and reviewed supporting documentation to determine if the 
sampled expenditures/revenues are classified correctly and are reported in the proper amounts for each ofthe 
following amounts reported on the schedule: 

Total General Fund Instructional Expenditures, 

Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures, 

Total Local Taxation Revenue, 

Total Local Eamings on Investment in Real Property, 

Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes, 

Nonpublic Textbook Revenue, and 

Nonpublic Transportation Revenue. 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedure. 
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Education Levels of Public School Staff (Schedule 2) 

2. We reconciled the total number of full-time classroom teachers per the schedule "Experience of Public 
Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers" (Schedule 4) to the combined total number of full-time 
classroom teachers per this schedule and to school board supporting payroll records as of October 1st. 

Comment: Schedule 4 was reporting two less teachers than Schedule 2. 

Management 's Response: We have corrected the report. The schedules now agree. 

3. We reconciled the combined total of principals and assistant principals per the schedule "Experience of Public 
Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers" (Schedule 4) to the combined total of principals and assistant 
principals per this schedule. 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedure. 

4. We obtained a list of full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by classification as of October 1st 
and as reported on the schedule. We traced a random sample of 25 teachers to the individual's persoimel file to 
determine if the individual's education level was properly classified on the schedule. 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedure. 

Number and Type of Public Schools (Schedule 3) 

5. We obtained a list of schools by type, as reported on the schedule. We compared the list to the schools and 
grade levels as reported on the Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies (CFDA 84.010) apphcation and/or 
the National School Lunch Program (CFDA 10.555). 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedure. 

Experience of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers (Schedule 4) 

6. We obtained a list of full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by classification as of October 1 and 
as reported on the schedule and traced the same sample used in procedure 4 to the individual's personnel file 
and detennined if the individual's experience was properly classified on the schedule. 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedure. 

Public School Staff Data (Schedule 5) 

7. We obtained a list of all classroom teachers including their base salary, extra compensation, and ROTC or 
rehired retiree status as well as full-time equivalent as reported on the schedule and traced a random sample of 
25 teachers to the individual's personnel file and determined if the individual's salary, extra compensation, and 
full-time equivalents were properly included on the schedule. 

Comment: Two exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedure. One teacher's base pay 
does not match with payroll information. One teacher has extra pay that is not being included anywhere. 
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Management 's Response: There was no coaching pay assignment in the HR system for this employee. The 
coaching supplement was paid on a traditional PR2 form, as extra work. Therefore the report could not designate 
this as coaching pay. This will corrected for future. We agree that this is an exception. 

Information Technology found a "bug" in the reporting process that did not recognize this coaching supplement. 
This was our first year reporting this from the Sungard System. It will be researched and corrected. We agree that 
this is an exception. 

8. We recalculated the average salaries and full-time equivalents reported in the schedule. 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedure. 

Class-Size Characteristics (Schedule 6) 

9. We obtained a list of classes by school, school type, and class size as reported on the schedule and reconciled 
school type classifications to Schedule 3 data, as obtained in procedure 5. We then traced a random sample of 
ten classes to the October 1 st roll books for those classes and determined if the number of students per the roll 
books agreed with the schedules. 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedure. 

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) for the 21st century (Schedule 7) 

10. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as reported by the testing 
authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board. 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedure. 

The Graduation Exit Exam for the 21st Century (Schedule 8) 

11. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as reported by the testing 
authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board. 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedure. 

The Iowa Tests (Schedule 9) 

12. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as reported by the testing 
authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board. 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedure. 

We were not engaged to, and did not perform an audit or examination, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion on management's assertions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to 
you. 
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This report is intended solely for the use of management of the School Board, the Louisiana Department of 
Education, the Louisiana Legislature, and the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, and should not be used by 
those who have not agreed to the procedures and taken responsibility for the sufficiency ofthe procedures for their 
puiposes. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public 
document. 

f 
ALLEN, GREEN & WILLL^MSON, LLP 

Monroe, Louisiana 
December 19, 2013 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule 1 

General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures 
and Certain Local Revenue Sources 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012-2013 

General Fund Instructional and Equipment Expenditures 
General Fund Instructional Expenditures: 
Teacher and Student Interaction Activities: 

Classroom Teacher Salaries 
Other Instructional Staff Activities 
Instructional Staff Employee Benefits 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Instructional Materials and Supplies 
Instructional Equipment 

Total Teacher and Student Interaction Activities 

Other Instructional Activities 

Pupil Support Services 
Less: Equipment for Pupil Support Services 

Net Pupil Support Services 

Instructional Staff Services 
Less: Equipment for Instructional Staff Services 

Net Instructional Staff Services 

School Administration 
Less: Equipment for School Administration 

Net School Administration 

Column A 

124,096,031 
17,433,575 
72,904,495 

4,602,943 
5,081,348 

126,543 

238,439 

23,086,318 
0 

16,658,177 
21,515 

28,017,000 
99,396 

Column B 

224,244,935 

238,439 

23,086,318 

16,636,662 

27,917,604 

Total General Fund Instructional Expenditures (Total of Column B) 

Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures (Object 730; Function Series 1000-4000) 

292,123,958 

518,413 

Certain Local Revenue Sources 
Local Taxation Revenue: 

Constitutional Ad Valorem Taxes 
Renewable Ad Valorem Tax 
Debt Service Ad Valorem Tax 
Up to 1 % of Collections by the Sheriff on Taxes Other than School Taxes 
Sales and Use Taxes 

Total Local Taxation Revenue 

12,586,371 
99,101,993 

9,749,726 
2,297,519 

71,286,828 
195,022,437 

Local Earnings on Investment in Real Property: 
Earnings from 16th Section Property 
Earnings from Other Real Property 

Total Local Earnings on Investment in Real Property 

0 
327,410 
527,410 

State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes: 
Revenue Sharing - Constitutional Tax 
Revenue Sharing - Other Taxes 
Revenue Sharing - Excess Portion 
Other Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 

Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 

407,163 
1,826,955 

0 
0 

2,234,118 

Nonpublic Textbook Revenue 

Nonpublic Transportation Revenue 

106,753 

o" 
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Schedule 2 

CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Education Levels of Public School Staff 
As of October 1,2012 

Category 

Less than a Bachelor's Degree 

Bachelor's Degree 

Master's Degree 

Master's Degree + 30 

Specialist in Education 

Ph. D. or Ed. D. 

Total 

Full-time Classroom Teachers 

Certificated 

Number 

22 

1643 

608 

190 

26 

7 

2496 

Percent 

1% 

66% 

24% 

8% 

1% 

0% 

Uncertificated 

Number 

22 

32 

15 

1 

0 

1 

71 

Percent 

31% 

45% 

21% 

1% 

0% 

1% 

Principals & Assistant Principals 

Certificated 

Number 

0 

0 

61 

66 

7 

6 

140 

Percent 

0% 

0% 

44% 

47% 

5% 

4% 

Uncertificated 

Number 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Percent 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 
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Schedule 3 

CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Number and Type of Public Schools 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Type 

Elementary 

Middle/Jr. High 

Secondary 

Combination 

Total 

Number 

43 

6 

14 

1 

64 

Note: Schools opened or closed during the fiscal year are included in this schedule. 
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Schedule 4 

CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Experience of Public Principals, Assistant Principals, and Full-time Classroom Teachers 
As of October 1,2012 

Assistant Principals 

Principals 

Classroom Teachers 

Total 

0-1 Yr. 

0 
0 

213 

213 

2-3 Yrs. 

0 
0 

250 

250 

4-10 Yrs. 

7 
1 

694 

702 

11-14 Yrs. 

6 
0 

332 

338 

15-19 Yrs. 

21 
10 

392 

423 

20-24 Yrs. 

15 
21 

263 

299 

25+ Yrs. 

28 
31 

423 

482 

Total 

77 
63 

2,567 

2,707 
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Schedule 5 

CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Public School Staff Data: Average Salaries 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

All Classroom 
Teachers 

Classroom Teachers 
Excluding ROTC, 

Rehired Retirees, and 
Flagged Salary 

Reductions 

Average Classroom 
Teachers' Salary 
Including Extra Compensation 

Average Classroom 
Teachers' Salary 
Excluding Extra Compensation 

Number of Teacher Full-time 
Equivalents (FTEs) used in 
Computation of Average Salaries 

$52,039.52 

$51,979.12 

2,557.00 

$51,090.39 

$51,041.36 

2,529.00 

31 



Schedule 6 

CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Class Size Characteristics 
As of October 1,2012 

School Type 

Elementary 

Elementary Activity Classes 

Middle/Jr. High 

Middle/Jr. High Activity Classes 

High 

High Activity Classes 

Combination 

Combination Activity Classes 

Class Size Range 

1 -

Percent 

37% 

10% 

8% 

2% 

33% 

8% 

2% 

0% 

20 

Number 

3842 

991 

787 

194 

3436 

831 

199 

22 

21 

Percent 

58% 

16% 

6% 

1% 

17% 

2% 

0% 

0% 

-26 

Number 

3149 

859 

318 

47 

935 

81 

3 

3 

27 

Percent 

19% 

6% 

19% 

2% 

50% 

4% 

0% 

0% 

-33 

Number 

479 

139 

483 

45 

1246 

87 

0 

1 

34+ 

Percent 

3% 

4% 

5% 

28% 

43% 

16% 

0% 

0% 

Number 

9 

10 

14 

72 

112 

42 

1 

0 

Note: The Board of Elementary and Secondary Education has set specific limits on the maximum size of classes 
at various grade levels. The maximum enrollment in grades K-3 is 26 students and maximum enrollment in 
grades 4-12 is 33 students. These limits do not apply to activity classes such as physical education, chorus, 
band, and other classes without maximum enrollment standards. Therefore, these classes are included only as 
separate line items. 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Schedule 7 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 4 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2013 

Number 

194 
735 

1606 
691 
381 

3,607 

Percent 

5% 
20% 
45% 
19% 
11% 

2012 
Number 

204 
747 

1607 
726 
438 

3,722 

Percent 

5% 
20% 
43% 
20% 
12% 

2011 
Number 

226 
762 

1659 
777 
452 

3,876 

Percent 

6% 
20% 
43% 
20% 
12% 

Mathematics 
2013 

Number 

277 
658 

1330 
622 
730 

3,617 

Percent 

8% 
18% 
37% 
17% 
20% 

2012 
Number 

265 
670 

1514 
731 
546 

3,726 

Percent 

7% 
18% 
4 1 % 
20% 
15% 

2011 
Number 

269 
660 

1457 
747 
744 

3,877 

Percent 

7% 
17% 
38% 
19% 
19% 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

students 
Grade 4 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

Science 
2013 

Number 

126 
487 

1406 
1027 
574 

3,620 

Percent 

3% 
13% 
39% 
28% 
16% 

2012 
Number 

226 
534 

1404 
1068 
492 

3,724 

Percent 

6% 
14% 
38% 
29% 
13% 

2011 
Number 

91 
504 

1502 
1185 
586 

3,868 

Percent 

2% 
13% 
39% 
3 1 % 
15% 

Social Studies 
2013 

Number 

71 
405 

1627 
871 
638 

3,612 

Percent 

2% 
11% 
45% 
24% 
18% 

2012 
Number 

60 
485 

1622 
786 
768 

3,721 

Percent 

2% 
13% 
44% 
2 1 % 
2 1 % 

2011 
Number 

123 
493 

1749 
794 
707 

3,866 

Percent 

3% 
13% 
45% 
2 1 % 
18% 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

students 
Grade 8 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2013 

Number 

165 
562 

1018 
679 
353 

2,777 

Percent 

6% 
20% 
37% 
24% 
13% 

2012 
Number 

171 
473 
983 
730 
183 

2,540 

Percent 

7% 
19% 
39% 
29% 

7% 

2011 
Number 

145 
482 
988 
658 
166 

2,439 

Percent 

6% 
20% 
4 1 % 
27% 

7% 

Mathematics 
2013 

Number 

97 
169 

1215 
641 
660 

2,782 

Percent 

3% 
6% 

44% 
23% 
24% 

2012 
Number 

154 
134 

1156 
652 
445 

2,541 

Percent 

6% 
5% 

45% 
26% 
18% 

2011 
Number 

84 
117 

1160 
614 
462 

2,437 

Percent 

3% 
5% 

48% 
25% 
19% 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 8 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

Science 
2013 

Number 

100 
502 
959 
758 
442 

2,761 

Percent 

4% 
18% 
35% 
27% 
16% 

2012 
Number 

109 
479 
793 
783 
362 

2,526 

Percent 

4% 
19% 
3 1 % 
3 1 % 
14% 

2011 
Number 

40 
419 
880 
689 
397 

2,425 

Percent 

2% 
17% 
36% 
28% 
16% 

Social Studies 
2013 

Number 

83 
410 

1121 
572 
577 

2,763 

Percent 

3% 
15% 
4 1 % 
2 1 % 
2 1 % 

2012 
Number 

113 
401 

1058 
536 
416 

2,524 

Percent 

4% 
16% 
42% 
2 1 % 
16% 

2011 
Number 

69 
307 

1078 
614 
356 

2,424 

Percent 

3% 
13% 
44% 
25% 
15% 
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Schedule 8 

CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Graduation Exit Examination (GEE) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 10 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2013 

Number Percent 

^H 
^^^M ^ ^ ^ 1 

2012 
Number 

1 
0 

19 
49 

183 

Percent 

0% 
0% 
8% 

19% 
73% 

252 

2011 
Number 

45 
325 

1088 
703 
554 

Percent 

2% 
12% 
40% 
26% 
20% 

2715 

Mathematics | 
2013 

Number Percent 

^H 
^^^M ^ ^ ^ 1 

2012 
Number 

2 
3 

14 
44 

281 

Percent 

1 % 
1 % 
4% 

13% 
82% 

344 

2011 1 
Number 

262 
332 
895 
517 
710 

Percent 

10% 
12% 
33% 
19% 
26% 

2716 1 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 11 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

Science 
2013 

Number Percent 

^H 
^^^M ^ ^ ^ 1 

2012 
Number 

162 
390 
727 
523 
481 

Percent 

7% 
17% 
32% 
23% 
2 1 % 

2283 

2011 
Number 

116 
377 
789 
492 
517 

Percent 

5% 
16% 
34% 
2 1 % 
23% 

2291 

Social Studies | 
2013 

Number Percent 

^H 
^^^M ^ ^ ^ 1 

2012 
Number 

85 
278 

1005 
521 
392 

Percent 

4% 
12% 
44% 
23% 
17% 

2281 

2011 1 
Number 

51 
232 

1003 
503 
500 

Percent 

2% 
10% 
44% 
22% 
22% 

2289 1 

Please note that the GEE has been phased out by the Department of Education, everything at that level was moved to end of course testing. 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

IOWA and iLEAP Tests 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Schedule 9 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 3 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2011 

Number 

203 
540 

1,236 
731 
694 

3,404 

Percent 

6% 
16% 
36% 
21% 
20% 

Mathematics 
2011 

Number 

276 
453 

1,199 
668 
809 

3,405 

Percent 

8% 
13% 
35% 
20% 
24% 

Science 
2011 

Number 

152 
458 

1,224 
941 
628 

3,403 

Percent 

4% 
13% 
36% 
28% 
18% 

Social Studies 
2011 

Number 

134 
505 

1,262 
742 
760 

3,403 

Percent 

4% 
15% 
37% 
22% 
22% 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 5 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2011 

Number 

149 
566 

1,247 
729 
434 

3,125 

Percent 

5% 
18% 
40% 
23% 
14% 

Mathematics 
2011 

Number 

247 
370 

1,263 
557 
689 

3,126 

Percent 

8% 
12% 
40% 
18% 
22% 

Science 
2011 

Number 

128 
387 

1,119 
1,025 

468 
3,127 

Percent 

4% 
12% 
36% 
33% 
15% 

Social Studies 
2011 

Number 

101 
361 

1,362 
754 
549 

3,127 

Percent 

3% 
12% 
44% 
24% 
18% 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 6 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2011 

Number 

105 
469 

1,190 
735 
364 

2,863 

Percent 

4% 
16% 
42% 
26% 
13% 

Mathematics 
2011 

Number 

224 
259 

1,251 
542 
590 

2,866 

Percent 

8% 
9% 

44% 
19% 
21% 

Science 
2011 

Number 

121 
418 

1,161 
842 
320 

2,862 

Percent 

4% 
15% 
41% 
29% 
11% 

Social Studies 
2011 

Number 

249 
365 

1,136 
629 
481 

2,860 

Percent 

9% 
13% 
40% 
22% 
17% 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 7 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2011 

Number 

190 
401 

1,129 
695 
271 

2,686 

Percent 

7% 
15% 
42% 
26% 
10% 

Mathematics 
2011 

Number 

130 
265 

1,108 
657 
525 

2,685 

Percent 

5% 
10% 
41% 
24% 
20% 

Science 
2011 

Number 

70 
351 

1,075 
770 
416 

2,682 

Percent 

3% 
13% 
40% 
29% 
16% 

Social Studies 
2011 

Number 

77 
325 

1,163 
596 
522 

2,683 

Percent 

3% 
12% 
43% 
22% 
19% 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

IOWA and iLEAP Tests 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Schedule 9 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 3 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2012 

Number 

168 
620 

1,181 
684 
643 

3,296 

Percent 

5% 
19% 
36% 
21% 
20% 

Mathematics 
2012 

Number 

295 
527 

1,167 
638 
669 

3,296 

Percent 

9% 
16% 
35% 
19% 
20% 

Science 
2012 

Number 

168 
577 

1,170 
877 
501 

3,293 

Percent 

5% 
18% 
36% 
27% 
15% 

Social Studies 
2012 

Number 

29 
570 

1,252 
702 
739 

3,292 

Percent 

1% 
17% 
38% 
21% 
22% 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 5 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2012 

Number 

147 
513 

1,258 
588 
387 

2,893 

Percent 

5% 
18% 
43% 
20% 
13% 

Mathematics 
2012 

Number 

223 
388 

1,289 
483 
512 

2,895 

Percent 

8% 
13% 
45% 
17% 
18% 

Science 
2012 

Number 

124 
461 

1,061 
869 
379 

2,894 

Percent 

4% 
16% 
37% 
30% 
13% 

Social Studies 
2012 

Number 

113 
341 

1,225 
702 
513 

2,894 

Percent 

4% 
12% 
42% 
24% 
18% 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 6 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2012 

Number 

149 
478 

1,238 
842 
412 

3,119 

Percent 

5% 
15% 
40% 
27% 
13% 

Mathematics 
2012 

Number 

206 
314 

1,228 
549 
818 

3,115 

Percent 

7% 
10% 
39% 
18% 
26% 

Science 
2012 

Number 

125 
430 

1,131 
933 
492 

3,111 

Percent 

4% 
14% 
36% 
30% 
16% 

Social Studies 
2012 

Number 

273 
298 

1,156 
799 
586 

3,112 

Percent 

9% 
10% 
37% 
26% 
19% 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 7 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2012 

Number 

168 
448 

1,102 
693 
326 

2,737 

Percent 

6% 
16% 
40% 
25% 
12% 

Mathematics 
2012 

Number 

207 
295 

1,159 
588 
484 

2,733 

Percent 

8% 
11% 
42% 
22% 
18% 

Science 
2012 

Number 

121 
551 
933 
764 
360 

2,729 

Percent 

4% 
20% 
34% 
28% 
13% 

Social Studies 
2012 

Number 

140 
420 

1,061 
628 
479 

2,728 

Percent 

5% 
15% 
39% 
23% 
18% 
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

IOWA and iLEAP Tests 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Schedule 9 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 3 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2013 

Number 

246 
538 

1,182 
584 
600 

3,150 

Percent 

8% 
17% 
38% 
19% 
19% 

Mathematics 
2013 

Number 

252 
545 

1,131 
603 
619 

3,150 

Percent 

8% 
17% 
36% 
19% 
20% 

Science 
2013 

Number 

200 
558 

1,097 
842 
452 

3,149 

Percent 

6% 
18% 
35% 
27% 
14% 

Social Studies 
2013 

Number 

109 
499 

1,193 
637 
709 

3,147 

Percent 

3% 
16% 
38% 
20% 
23% 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 5 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2013 

Number 

199 
546 

1,187 
592 
336 

2,860 

Percent 

7% 
19% 
42% 
21% 
12% 

Mathematics 
2013 

Number 

135 
527 

1,316 
491 
405 

2,874 

Percent 

5% 
18% 
46% 
17% 
14% 

Science 
2013 

Number 

123 
502 

1,108 
815 
323 

2,871 

Percent 

4% 
17% 
39% 
28% 
11% 

Social Studies 
2013 

Number 

145 
329 

1,294 
573 
531 

2,872 

Percent 

5% 
11% 
45% 
20% 
18% 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 6 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2013 

Number 

119 
481 

1,231 
608 
514 

2,953 

Percent 

4% 
16% 
42% 
21% 
17% 

Mathematics 
2013 

Number 

182 
310 

1,191 
555 
714 

2,952 

Percent 

6% 
11% 
40% 
19% 
24% 

Science 
2013 

Number 

122 
510 

1,032 
810 
479 

2,953 

Percent 

4% 
17% 
35% 
27% 
16% 

Social Studies 
2013 

Number 

313 
338 

1,057 
624 
621 

2,953 

Percent 

11% 
11% 
36% 
21% 
21% 

District Achievement Level 
Results 

Students 
Grade 7 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2013 

Number 

222 
475 

1,152 
769 
377 

2,995 

Percent 

7% 
16% 
38% 
26% 
13% 

Mathematics 
2013 

Number 

125 
338 

1,196 
667 
666 

2,992 

Percent 

4% 
11% 
40% 
22% 
22% 

Science 
2013 

Number 

83 
433 
995 
889 
590 

2,990 

Percent 

3% 
14% 
33% 
30% 
20% 

Social Studies 
2013 

Number 

95 
454 

1,195 
562 
681 

2,987 

Percent 

3% 
15% 
40% 
19% 
23% 

Please note that the grade 9 iLEAP has been dropped by the Department of Education, everything at that level v/as moved to end of course testing 
The Department of Education will be reviewing End of Course Testing and its potential inclusion for Assurance purposes in time for Assurance 
submissions next year. 
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